AGREEMENT

Between

METROHEALTH MEDICAL CENTER METROHEALTH CENTER FOR SKILLED NURSING CARE METROHEALTH CENTER FOR COMMUNITY HEALTH

And

LOCAL 3360 And LOCAL 3353

And OHIO COUNCIL 8 AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES -- AFL-CIO

Effective

February 4, 2004 until February 3, 2007

HOSPITAL/UNION AGREEMENT

Table of Contents

TEXT

PAGE

AGREEMENT		1
ARTICLE I-	Recognition	1
ARTICLE II -	Non-discrimination	2 2 3 3
ARTICLE III -	No Strike	2
ARTICLE IV -	Management Rights	3
ARTICLE V -	Union Rights	3
ARTICLE VI -	Union Security and Check off	3
ARTICLE VII -	Union Activity - Visitation -	
	Bulletin Boards	5
ARTICLE VIII -	Union Representation	6
ARTICLE IX -	Discipline	8
ARTICLE X -	Grievance Procedure	8
ARTICLE XI -	Probationary Period	12
ARTICLE XII -	Seniority	12
ARTICLE XIII -	Lateral Transfers, Shift Preference,	13
	and Work Week Preference	
ARTICLE XIV -	Permanent Promotions -	14
	Job Bidding	
ARTICLE XV -	Lay Offs	15
ARTICLE XVI -	Hours of Work	17
ARTICLE XVII -	Overtime -	
	Premium Pay Compensation	19
ARTICLE XVIII -	Job Evaluation - Classifications	21
ARTICLE XIX -	Temporary Transfers	22
ARTICLE XX	Leaves of Absence	22
ARTICLE XXI -	Holidays	26
ARTICLE XXII -	Vacations	27
ARTICLE XXIII -	Shift Premiums	28
ARTICLE XXIV -	On-Call Pay	28
ARTICLE XXV -	Report-in Pay	28
ARTICLE XXVI -	Call-in Pay	29
ARTICLE XXVII -	Mileage Allowance	29
ARTICLE XXVIII -	Uniforms and Protective Gear	29
ARTICLE XXIX -	Part Time Employees - Benefits	29
ARTICLE XXX -	Pay Day and Pay Procedure	29
ARTICLE XXXI -	Insurance	30
ARTICLE XXXII -	General Wage Increases	31
ARTICLE XXXIII -	Successor	33
ARTICLE XXXIV -	Miscellaneous	33
ARTICLE XXXV -	Legality	33
ARTICLE XXXVI -	Duration	34

HOSPITAL/UNION AGREEMENT

Table of Contents

AGE
34
37
37
37
37
38
38
39
39
39
39
40
40
40

WAGE TABLES JOB GRADES

AGREEMENT

MetroHealth Medical Center, Cleveland, Ohio, and MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care, Highland Hills, Ohio; and all present satellite locations and any new satellite locations (the latter subject to negotiations and agreement on operating practices and procedures), shall hereinafter be referred to collectively as the "Hospital" and separately as "MetroHealth Medical Center" and MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care." Locals 3360 and 3353 and Ohio Council 8 of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, shall hereinafter be referred to as the "Union." The male pronoun or adjective where used herein refers to the female also unless otherwise indicated. The term "employee" or "employees" where used herein refers to all employees in the bargaining unit, and both the Hospital and the Union recognize that the benefits and responsibilities of employment, including those provided in this Statement, shall be shared and assumed equally and uniformly by all employees. The purpose of this Agreement is to provide a fair and responsible method of enabling employees covered by this Agreement to participate, through union representation, in the establishment of terms and conditions of their employment and to establish a peaceful procedure for the resolution of all differences between the parties (including all bargaining unit employees), subject to the laws of the United States, the State of Ohio, and subject at all times to the paramount responsibility of the Hospital to care properly for patients, without interruption or interference.

ARTICLE I - RECOGNITION

(1) The Union is recognized as the sole and exclusive representative for all employees in the job classifications of the bargaining unit, as set forth in the attached Salary Schedules, for the purpose of establishing rates of pay, wages, hours, and other conditions of employment, but excluding physicians, dentists, pharmacists, podiatrists, bacteriologists (with doctorate degree), psychologists, dietitians, registered nurses, students, licensed or registered physical and/or occupational therapists, administrative personnel (including all employees in the Department of Human Resources), management level employees, confidential secretaries and other confidential employees, employees of the Professional Staff Funds, security personnel, supervisors (as defined by law), and seasonal and casual employees. It is the intention of both the Hospital and the Union that the bargaining units covered by this Agreement include all non-supervisory and non-professional job classifications unless specifically excluded, and the Hospital will not recognize any other union or organization as the representative for any employees within the bargaining unit. Furthermore, work customarily performed by employees within the bargaining unit shall not be regularly performed by supervisors or other personnel not included within the bargaining unit, except under the following conditions:

(a) Where bargaining unit and non-bargaining unit job content and functions functionally overlap (such as R.N. - L.P.N. - Nurse Aide, Maintenance, etc.).

(b) In the event of an emergency.

- (c) For instructional purposes.
- (d) Where qualified employees are not readily available.
- (e) Where necessary to maintain normal operations because of absenteeism or other

good reason.

(1-A) Work customarily performed by bargaining unit members will continue to be performed by bargaining unit members consistent with past practice and provided that sufficient bargaining unit members are readily available to complete the work in a reasonably expeditious period of time, consistent with current practice. In addition, with respect to construction work, the Hospital retains the right to subcontract bargaining unit work where such is new construction, or related to new construction, or bargaining unit employees do not possess the necessary skills to perform the work in question, or the equipment necessary to perform the work in question is not readily available, or the work in question cannot be completed in a reasonably expeditious period of time, consistent with current practice. Notwithstanding the above, nothing herein shall limit the Hospital's rights to have bargaining unit work performed by non-bargaining unit persons as set forth in paragraph 1 of Article I of the Agreement.

ARTICLE II - NON-DISCRIMINATION

(2) Both the Hospital and the Union recognize their respective responsibilities under Federal and State civil rights laws, fair employment practice acts, and other similar constitutional and statutory requirements. Therefore, both parties hereby reaffirm their commitments, legal and moral, not to discriminate in any manner relating to employment on the basis of race, color, creed, national origin, age, sex, sexual preference or handicap.

(3) The Hospital recognizes the right of all employees and all applicants for employment to be free to join the Union and to participate in lawful concerted Union activities. Therefore, the Hospital agrees that there shall be no discrimination, interference, restraint, coercion, or reprisal by the Hospital against any employee or any applicant for employment because of Union membership or because of any lawful activity in an official capacity on behalf of the Union.

(4) All employees at the Hospital within the bargaining unit shall receive equal treatment and shall share in any and all benefits and responsibilities provided herein.

ARTICLE III - NO STRIKE

(5) The Union shall not, directly or indirectly, call, sanction, encourage, finance, and/or assist in any way, nor shall any employee instigate or participate, directly or indirectly, in any strike, slowdown, walkout, work stoppage, picketing, or interference of any kind at any operation or operations of the Hospital for the duration of this Agreement.

(6) Violations of Paragraph 5 shall be proper cause for discharge or other disciplinary action.

(7) The Union shall at all times cooperate with the Hospital in continuing operations in a normal manner and shall actively discourage and endeavor to prevent or terminate any violation of Paragraph 5. In the event any violation of Paragraph 5 occurs, the Union shall immediately notify all employees that the strike, slowdown, picketing, work stoppage, or other interference at any operation or operations of the Hospital is prohibited and is not in any way sanctioned or approved by the Union. Furthermore, the Union shall also immediately advise all employees to return to work at once.

(8) It is agreed that all orders of Hospital supervisors shall be complied with during the period when a dispute is being processed through the Grievance Procedure.

(9) The Hospital shall not lock out any employees for the duration of this Agreement

ARTICLE IV - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

(10) The Union recognizes the Hospital as the body of authority solely vested with the right to run the Hospital. It shall have the right to take any action it considers necessary and proper to effectuate any management policy expressed or implied, except as expressly limited under this Agreement. Nothing in this Article shall be construed to restrict or to limit any management authority. The Hospital has no duty to bargain over its decision or the effects of such decisions except as provided by this Agreement.

(10-A) Except as specifically limited by explicit provision of this Agreement, the Hospital shall have the exclusive right to manage the operations, control the premises, direct the working forces, and maintain efficiency of operations. Specifically, the Hospital's exclusive rights include, but are not limited to, the right to hire, discipline and discharge for just cause, lay off, and promote; to promulgate and enforce reasonable rules and regulations; to reorganize, discontinue, or enlarge any department or division; to transfer employees (including the assignment and allocation to work) within departments or to other departments; to introduce new and/or improve equipment, methods, and/or facilities; to determine work methods; to determine size and duties of the work force and judge competency; to establish, modify, consolidate, or abolish jobs (or classifications); to determine staffing patterns, including, but not limited to, the assignment of employees as to numbers employed, duties to be performed, qualifications required, and areas worked; to determine all policies and procedures related to patient care, research and medical education; and to carry out the ordinary and customary functions of management, subject only to the restrictions and regulations governing the exercise of these rights as are expressly provided herein.

(10-B)In addition, unless otherwise restricted by an express term of this Agreement, all rights are exclusively reserved by the Hospital. Further, the exercise of any enumerated or reserved management rights shall not be the subject of negotiation during the term of this Agreement, except as provided by this Agreement, either with respect to the decision or its effects.

ARTICLE V - UNION RIGHTS

(11) It shall not be a violation of this Agreement and it shall not be a cause for discharge or disciplinary action if any employee refuses to enter upon any property other than MetroHealth Medical Center, MetroHealth Center For Skilled Nursing Care, and/or Hospital Satellite Clinics that is involved in a lawful primary labor dispute, refuses to go through or work behind any lawful primary picket line, or refuses to do work normally done by lawful primary striking members of another bargaining unit, except the Hospital shall not be required to pay the wages of any such employees.

(12) Any alleged violation of Union rights is subject to immediate review at Step 3 of the Grievance Procedure.

ARTICLE VI - UNION SECURITY AND CHECK OFF

(13) All employees in the bargaining unit covered by this Agreement who are members of the Union on the date this Agreement is signed and all other employees in such bargaining unit who become members of the Union at any time in the future shall, for the term of this Agreement, continue to be members of the Union, and the Hospital will not honor dues deduction (check-off) revocation from any such employee except as provided herein.

All bargaining unit employees who are not members in good standing of the Union shall be required to pay a fair share fee to the Union as a condition of continued employment.

All bargaining unit employees who do not become members in good standing of the Union shall be required to pay a fair share fee to the Union effective sixty days from the employee's date of hire as a condition of employment.

The fair share fee amount shall be certified to the Hospital by the Treasurer of the Local Union.

The deduction of the fair share fee from any earnings of the employee shall be automatic and does not require a written authorization for payroll deduction.

Payment to the Union of fair share fees shall be made in accordance with regular dues deductions as provided herein.

(13-A)The Hospital will deduct regular initiation fees and monthly dues from the pay of employees covered by this Agreement upon receipt from the Union of individual written authorization cards voluntarily executed by an employee for that purpose and bearing his signature. Provided that:

(a) An employee shall have the right to revoke such authorization by giving written notice to the Hospital and the Union at any time during the fifteen (15) day period preceding the termination of this Agreement, and the authorization card shall state clearly on its face the right of an employee to revoke during that period; and

(b) The Hospital's obligation to make deductions shall terminate automatically upon timely receipt of revocation of authorization or upon termination of employment or transfer to a job classification outside the bargaining unit.

(13-B)The Hospital will deduct voluntary contributions to the AFSCME International Union P.E.O.P.L.E. (Public Employees Organized to Promote Legislative Equality) Committee from the pay of employees covered by this Agreement upon receipt from the Union of individual written authorization cards voluntarily executed by an employee for that purpose and bearing his signature. Provided that:

(a) An employee shall have the right to revoke such authorization by giving written notice to the Hospital and the Union at any time, and the authorization card shall state clearly on its face the right of an employee to revoke; and

(b) The Hospital's obligation to make deductions shall terminate automatically upon timely receipt of revocation of authorization, or upon termination of employment, or transfer to a job classification outside the bargaining unit.

(13-C) Deductions will be made from the pay of MetroHealth Medical Center employees during the first pay period of each month. In the event a MetroHealth Medical Center employee's first monthly pay is insufficient, the Hospital will make a deduction from the pay earned during the next pay period (or, if that is insufficient, a subsequent pay period).

(13-D)Deductions will be made from the pay of MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care employees during the first pay period of each month. In the event a MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care employee's first monthly pay is insufficient, the Hospital will make a deduction from the pay earned during the next pay period (or, if that is insufficient, a subsequent pay period).

(14) All deductions under Article VI, together with an alphabetical list of names and addresses of all employees whose fees and/or dues have been deducted, shall be transmitted in duplicate to the Union no later than the tenth (10th) day following the end of the pay period in which the deduction is made, and, upon receipt, the Union shall assume full responsibility for the dispositions of all funds deducted. The Hospital shall furnish the name, address, and social security number of all newly hired bargaining unit employees to AFSCME, Ohio Council 8 within thirty (30) days of their employment.

(15) The Union will indemnify and save the Hospital harmless from any action growing out of deductions hereunder and commenced by an employee or anyone else against the Hospital (or the Hospital and the Union jointly).

ARTICLE VII - UNION ACTIVITY - VISITATION - BULLETIN BOARDS

(16) Unless otherwise permitted by the Hospital, there shall be no distribution or posting of any literature or other writings and no meetings of any kind on Hospital premises except as follows:

(a) Meetings between the Hospital and the Union as provided herein;

(b) Meetings of Union Stewards and other Union Representatives which may be held once a week during non-working time (in a room mutually selected) for the purpose of discussing grievances as defined herein, and once a month on a fixed schedule for three (3) hours on working time at MetroHealth Medical Center, and once a month on a fixed schedule for one and one-half (1-1/2)hours on working time at MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care. Furthermore, the Hospital agrees that the Union grievance committee shall be given two (2) hours on working time at MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care and three (3) hours on working time at MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care and three (3) hours on working time at MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care and three (3) hours on working time at MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care and three (3) hours on working time at MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care and three (3) hours on working time at MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care and three (3) hours on working time at MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care and three (3) hours on working time at MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care and three (3) hours on working time at MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care and three (3) hours on working time at MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care and three (3) hours on working time at MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care and three (3) hours on working time at MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care and three (3) hours on working time at MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care and three (3) hours on working time at MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care and three (3) hours on working time at MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care and three (3) hours on working time at MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care and three (3) hours on working time at MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care and three (3) hours on working time at MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care and three (3) hours on workin

Provided, that it is understood and agreed that such meetings and/or solicitations shall not in any way interfere with the operations of the Hospital or the performance of the duties of any of the employees involved. Stewards meetings shall not be conducted during holiday weeks. However, it is also agreed that the Union President at each Hospital unit shall be permitted to attend Hospital orientation sessions for all newly hired bargaining unit employees for a reasonable period of time but not more than thirty (30) minutes for the purpose of making a presentation and answering questions about the Union in a manner consistent with the overall orientation program, and such presentations by the Union President shall be during working hours with no loss of pay.

(17) Non-employee representatives of the Union may enter the Hospital between the hours of 8:30 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, upon request to the Hospital Director (either MetroHealth Medical Center, or MetroHealth Center For Skilled Nursing Care) or his designee, for the purposes only of ascertaining whether or not this Agreement is being observed and of attending meetings at Step 3 of the grievance procedure. Such visit(s) shall be made by appointment with the Director or his designee and shall not interfere with the work of any employee or the operations of the Hospital. Provided, however, that if an emergency occurs between the hours of 5:00 p.m. and 8:30 a.m., Monday through Friday, or on Saturday or Sunday, and is so serious that it cannot be delayed until regular visitation hours, the representative of the Union may contact the Hospital Director or his designee for special permission to enter the Hospital.

(18) The Hospital shall provide the Union with bulletin boards at mutually selected locations in the Hospital, provided that:

(a) Such bulletin boards shall be used only for posting notices bearing the written approval of the President of the Union or the Union grievance committee or an official representative of Ohio Council 8;

(b) No notice or other writing may contain anything political, controversial, or critical of the Hospital or any other institution or of any employee or other person; and

(c) Upon written request from the Hospital Director or his designee, the Union will immediately remove any notice or other writing that the Hospital believes violates this paragraph and the Union shall have the right to grieve such action at Step 3 of the grievance procedure.

ARTICLE VIII - UNION REPRESENTATION

(19) Employees selected by the Union to act as Union representatives for the purpose of processing grievances under the grievance procedure shall be known as "stewards." Each steward shall have an alternate who shall act as the steward when the steward is absent from work. The Hospital will recognize stewards in the following numbers:

METROHEALTH MEDICAL CENTER

First (day) Shift	22
Second Shift	5
Third Shift	4
Kenneth W. Clement Center	1
John Smith Health Center	1
McCafferty Health Clinic	1
Clinics	1

METROHEALTH CENTER FOR SKILLED NURSING CARE

Nutritional Services	2
Plant Engineering	1
Environmental Services	2
Nursing Department	3
Second Shift	1
Third Shift	1
Miscellaneous	2
Materials Management /SPD	1

(20) The stewards shall represent one or more classifications as agreed upon by the parties in negotiations. If the need arises to adjust either the number of stewards provided for in Paragraph 19 or the agreed upon areas of representation, the Hospital and the Union will endeavor to resolve the matter in a mutually satisfactory manner. In the various nursing departments, the Union shall appoint no more than one (1) steward from each nursing unit (nursing floor in the case of MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care) on any given shift.

(21) There shall be a Grievance Committee consisting of the Union President, Union Vice President, and five (5) stewards to be selected by the Union. The Union President shall be a full-time employee and work on the day shift. A steward must work in the department and on the shift which he represents and shall not function as a Union representative elsewhere or on any other shift.

(22) To the extent practicable, Union Presidents, Union Vice Presidents, stewards, and alternate stewards shall remain in their departments and on their respective shifts during their term of office, and any scheduled departmental or shift transfers will first be discussed with the Union. However, first shift licensed practical nurses elected as stewards shall not rotate. If a first shift licensed practical nurse is appointed to office, this exception shall not apply. In addition, Union Presidents, Union Vice Presidents, and stewards shall be provided with super seniority for purposes of layoff and recall. Provided, that this paragraph shall not be construed to give any employee greater seniority for purposes of promotion or other employment priority, except as specifically listed in this paragraph. (23) The Union shall furnish the Hospital with a written list of the Union President and Union Vice President, members of the Grievance Committee, and the Stewards and their Alternate Stewards, indicating the department and classification and shift to which each is assigned, and further shall promptly notify the Hospital in writing of any changes therein.

(24) The Union President, Union Vice President, and stewards shall be permitted to reasonably investigate and process grievances during their working hours without loss of pay, and for this purpose the Union President shall be given the following time off from work:

MetroHealth Medical Center - Full Time

MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care - Three (3) hours per day (and whatever additional time is required), plus daily replacement by the Union Vice President in the event of the Union President's absence.

In addition, the Union Vice President at MetroHealth Medical Center shall be given three (3) hours per day off from work plus full day replacement when the Union President is absent for more than five (5) consecutive working days, or when the hospital is given at least one (1) week advance notice of the Union President's absence, regardless of the length of absence. The Union Vice President at MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care shall be given two (2) hours per day off from work and shall be provided with a Monday to Friday work schedule. The Union Recording Secretary at the MetroHealth Medical Center shall be given full day replacement if the Union President and Union Vice President both are absent for more than five (5) consecutive working days or when the Hospital is given at least one (1) week advance notice that both the Union President and Vice President will be absent, regardless of the length of absence. The Union Recording Secretary at the MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care shall be given three (3) hours per day off from work if the Union President and Union Vice President both are absent for more than five (5) consecutive working days or when the Hospital is given at least one (1) week advance notice that both the Union President and Vice President will be absent, regardless of the length of absence. For purposes of this provision the President shall give written notice to the Human Resource Department, and the Vice President and Recording Secretary must provide written notice to their respective departments before replacing the absent officer. The Union will attempt to provide these notices at least two (2) weeks before replacing the absent officer whenever possible. The Union President, Union Vice President, and stewards shall process grievances with proper regard for the Hospital's operational needs and shall cooperate in good faith with the Hospital in keeping to a minimum the time lost from work due to grievance handling.

(25) Stewards shall adhere to the following procedure in processing grievances:

(a) An employee having a grievance as defined herein shall notify his immediate supervisor and may request him to call his steward. The supervisor, in turn, shall make arrangements to have the steward leave his job, as promptly as convenient, based upon the needs of the steward's department and the employee's department.

(b) Before leaving his job, the steward shall record on a special grievance time sheet the time he starts his grievance work. (Upon request, a copy of this record will be furnished to the Union.)

(c) When it is necessary for a steward to enter a department (or a section of a department) supervised by a supervisor other than his own, he shall report first to the supervisor in charge (if he is available) and advise him of the purpose of his being there.

(d) Upon returning to his job, the steward shall record on the special grievance time sheet the time he completed his grievance work and then he shall report to his own supervisor before resuming work if the Supervisor is available (or, if he is unavailable, as soon as possible after resuming work).

(e) The Union President shall generally abide by the rules applicable to stewards, except that the Hospital will grant the Union President a reasonable amount of time to carry out the functions of his office in the areas of grievance administration and meetings with Hospital officials at mutually convenient times on problems of mutual concern. In the event of the absence of a steward and his alternate steward, the Union President will be called to function in their place if the need arises. Furthermore, a steward having an individual grievance in connection with his own work may ask for the Union President to assist him in adjusting the grievance with his supervisor. In the event of the absence of the Union President, the Union Vice President shall be called in his place if the need arises.

ARTICLE IX - DISCIPLINE

(26) An employee who is disciplined must be disciplined within seven (7) working days of the events upon which the discipline is based were discovered or reasonably should have been discovered, and the employee who is disciplined (and his steward) shall be given a written notice stating the reason for the disciplinary action at the time the disciplinary action is imposed. Repeated failure of any Hospital supervisor or management official to comply with this obligation will create a grievance for appropriate corrective action (including resolution of the underlying grievance in favor of the Grievant). In case of suspension or discharge, the employee shall be advised that he has a right to have his steward present and, if he so requests, shall be promptly granted an interview with his steward before he is required to leave the Hospital. Furthermore, the Hospital will join with the Union in reasonable general publication efforts to advise all bargaining unit employees of their right to representation by a Steward in cases of suspension or discharge. Furthermore, in imposing discipline on a current charge, the Hospital will not take into account any prior infractions which occurred more than eighteen (18) months previously, with personnel records of such infractions occurring more than eighteen (18) months previously being removed from the employee's file.

(26-A)Whenever the Hospital determines that an employee may be subject to discharge, a pre-discharge conference will be scheduled to afford the employee an opportunity to offer an explanation of the alleged conduct, inclusive of oral and/or written evidence. The Hospital shall notify the affected employee and his Union representative of the date and time of the conference. The employee's Union representative shall be present at the pre-discharge conference unless otherwise agreed between said employee and his representative. Any such agreement shall be reduced to writing, signed by both parties, and submitted to the Hospital for the record. An employee may also elect, in writing, to waive the opportunity for a pre-discharge conference.

(27) Any suspension shall be for a specific number of consecutive days on which the employee would be regularly scheduled to work.

(28) It is important that employee complaints of unjust suspension or discharge be processed promptly. Therefore, all such disciplinary actions can be reviewed through the grievance procedure.

ARTICLE X - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

(29) A grievance is a dispute or difference between the Hospital and the Union, or between the Hospital and an employee, concerning the interpretation and/or application of any provision of the Agreement, including all disciplinary actions, and when any such grievance arises, the following procedure shall be observed:

Step 1: An employee who has a grievance shall take it up orally with his immediate supervisor, either alone or accompanied by his steward if the employee so wishes, within seven (7) calendar days after the events upon which his grievance is based, and the supervisor shall give his answer to the employee and his steward (if the steward was present during the Step 1 meeting) within three (3) work days after the meeting.

Step 2: If the employee's grievance is not satisfactorily settled at Step 1, the grievance may, within seven (7) calendar days after receipt of the Step 1 answer, be reduced to writing and filed with the employee's Department Head, with a copy to the Human Resources Department, on a grievance form setting forth the complete details of the grievance (i.e., the facts upon with it is based, the approximate time of occurrence, the relief or remedy requested) and be dated and signed by the employee and his steward. At the request of the Union President, the Department Head (or his designee if the Department Head is absent) shall meet with the employee's steward and the Union President within seven (7) days after the written grievance has been filed, and a written answer shall be given to the Union President within seven (7) calendar days after the Step 2 meeting.

Step 3: If the grievance is not satisfactorily settled at Step 2, the Union may, within fourteen (14) calendar days after the receipt of the Step 2 answer, appeal in writing to the Department of Human Resources and, in that event, the grievance shall automatically be referred to the Hospital's Grievance Review Board (consisting of a Hospital Labor Relations representative and other assigned Hospital representatives).

(a) The appeal shall be considered at the next regular monthly meeting of the Union (including representatives of Ohio Council 8) and the Grievance Review Board (except that if an appeal other than a disciplinary matter is filed less than fourteen (14) calendar days before the regular meeting date, it shall be postponed to the following regular monthly meeting.

(b) The Union shall provide the Grievance Review Board with a written agenda of all grievances to be considered at the next regular monthly meeting of the Union and the Grievance Review Board not less than fourteen (14) calendar days in advance of the next scheduled regular monthly meeting.

(c) If the grievance is not settled at the Step 3 meeting, the Grievance Review Board shall issue a written answer within eighteen (18) calendar days after the meeting unless the Hospital requests an extension of time to provide its answer. Such requests for extensions shall not be unreasonably denied.

Step 4: If the grievance is not satisfactorily settled at Step 3, the Union may, within sixty (60) calendar days after receipt of the Step 3 answer, submit the matter to final and binding arbitration by requesting the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS) to submit a panel of seven (7) arbitrators and the arbitrator shall then be chosen in accordance with the FMCS's then applicable rules. The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne equally by the parties. Furthermore, the aggrieved employee, his steward, the Union President, and the Union Vice President, and any necessary witnesses shall not lose any regular straight-time pay for time off the job while attending any arbitration proceedings.

(30) A policy grievance which affects a substantial number of employees may be initially presented by the Union at Step 2 or Step 3 of the grievance procedure and, if timely filed, will be considered at the next appropriate grievance meeting or, at the option of the Hospital, at a joint MetroHealth Medical Center-MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care Grievance Review Board (including the MetroHealth Medical Center Local President) meeting with the Union (including official representatives of Ohio Council 8), which must be held within fourteen (14) calendar days of the date the grievance was filed. If a grievance referred to joint consideration is not settled at the meeting, the joint MetroHealth Medical Center/MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care Grievance Review Board shall give a final written answer within thirty (30) calendar days after the meeting and, if such answer is not satisfactory to the Union, the Union may submit the grievance to arbitration under Step 4 of the grievance procedure.

(31) In the event a grievance goes to arbitration, the arbitrator shall have jurisdiction only over disputes arising out of grievances as to the interpretation and/or application of the provisions of this Agreement (including disciplinary actions to the extent permitted herein), and/or compliance with the provisions of this Agreement, and in reaching his decision the arbitrator shall have no authority (1) to add to or subtract from or modify in any way any of the provisions of this Agreement; (2) to pass upon issues governed by law; or (3) to make an award in conflict with law. The arbitrator shall issue a decision within thirty (30) calendar days after submission of the case to him (unless otherwise agreed upon by the parties).

(32) All decisions of arbitrators consistent with Paragraph 31 and all pre-arbitration grievance settlements reached by the Union and the Hospital shall be final, conclusive, and binding on the Hospital, the Union, and the employees. Provided, that a grievance may be withdrawn by the Union at any time during Steps 1, 2, or 3 of the grievance procedure, and the withdrawal of any grievances shall not be prejudicial to the positions taken by the parties as they related to that grievance or any other grievances.

(33) Grievance Mediation

Section 1.

- A. All grievances which have been appealed to arbitration will be referred to mediation unless either party determines not to mediate a particular grievance. Arbitration scheduling will give priority to cases which have first been mediated.
- B. The parties shall mutually agree to a panel of five (5) mediators to serve in the capacity of grievance mediators. Panel members must be experienced mediators and/or arbitrators with mediatory skills. Mediation panel members may not serve as arbitrators.
- C. Each member of the mediation panel will be asked to provide a schedule of available dates and cases will be scheduled in a manner which assures that the mediator will be able to handle multiple cases on each date unless otherwise mutually agreed. The parties agree not to hear more than five (5) cases a day. Mediation shall be scheduled on a rotating basis among the panel members to the extent the mediator is available and his/her schedule allows.
- D. Representatives designated by each party shall have the right to be present at the mediation conference. Each party will have a representative vested with full authority to resolve the issues being considered. Representatives of the Union are the Local President, Local Vice President, applicable steward, Grievant (if applicable), and an Ohio Council 8 Representative. The Hospital shall be represented by Human Resources representatives and applicable management representatives.

E.	The mediator may employ all of the techniques commonly associated with mediation, including private caucuses with the parties, but the taking of oaths and the examination of witnesses shall not be permitted and no verbatim record of the proceeding shall be taken. The purpose of the mediation effort is to reach a mutually agreeable resolution of the dispute and there will be no procedural constraints regarding the review of facts and arguments. There shall be no formal evidence rules. Written materials presented to the mediator will be returned to the party at the conclusion of the mediation hearing.
F.	Mediation efforts will be informal in nature and shall not include written opinions or recommendations from the mediator. In the event that a grievance that has been mediated is appealed to arbitration, there shall be no reference in the arbitration proceeding to the fact that a mediation conference was or was not held. Nothing said or done by the mediator may be referenced or introduced into evidence at the arbitration hearing. Nothing said or done by either party for the first time in the mediation conference may be used against it in arbitration.
G.	At the mediation conference the mediator shall first seek to assist the parties in reaching a mutually satisfactory settlement of the grievance which is within the parameters of the collective bargaining agreement. If a settlement is reached, a settlement agreement will be entered into at the mediation conference. The mediator shall not have the authority to compel the resolution of a grievance.
Н.	If a grievance remains unresolved at the end of the mediation session, the mediator will provide an oral advisory opinion as to how the grievance is likely to be decided if it is presented at arbitration. This opinion is non-binding and inadmissible in any subsequent arbitration proceeding.
I.	The dates, times and places of mediation sessions will be determined by mutual agreement of the parties. Each party shall designate a representative responsible for scheduling mediation sessions.

Section 2.

The fees and expenses to be charged by mediation panel members shall be negotiated between the panel participants and the parties. Fees and expenses for grievance mediation shall be shared equally by the parties.

(34) The time limits set forth in the grievance procedure shall, unless extended by mutual written agreement of the Hospital and the Union, be binding and any grievances not timely presented, or timely processed thereafter, shall not be considered a grievance under this Agreement and shall not be arbitrable. Furthermore, the Hospital is obligated to respond to grievances at all steps of the grievance procedure in a timely manner, and repeated failure of any Hospital supervisor or management official to comply with this obligation will create a policy grievance for appropriate corrective action (including resolution of a late answered grievance in favor of the Grievant). In addition, the failure of the Hospital to provide a timely response to a grievance at Step 3 of the Grievance Procedure will result in settlement of the grievance in favor of the Grievant.

(35) There shall be a monthly meeting of the Hospital and the Union at a time mutually agreeable. The purpose of such meeting will be (a) to discuss matters of mutual interest relating to the employees covered by this Agreement and (b) to consider grievances pending at Step 3 of the grievance procedure.

ARTICLE XI - PROBATIONARY PERIOD

(36) New full-time employees shall be considered to be on probation for a period of ninety (90) calendar days and new part-time employees shall be considered to be on probation for a period of 120 calendar days. Part-time employees otherwise eligible for benefits under this Agreement shall be eligible for benefits after ninety (90) calendar days. During such probationary period the Hospital shall have sole discretion to discipline or discharge such employees and actions during this period cannot be reviewed through the grievance procedure or otherwise affected by this Agreement. Provided, however, that the Hospital will not discipline or discharge a probationary employee because of Union membership or Union activity unless such activity violates any provision of this Agreement or state law. Furthermore, the Hospital shall provide each new employee with a written evaluation of work performance after forty (45) days and after ninety (90) days of initial employment. Provided, however, that any absence of five (5) or more consecutive scheduled work days shall toll the probationary period for the duration of the absence, extending the original ending date of the probationary period by the period of the absence.

(37) If an employee whose employment has terminated for any reason whatsoever is rehired, he shall be considered a new employee and subject to the provisions of Paragraph 36.

ARTICLE XII - SENIORITY

(38) Seniority shall be an employee's uninterrupted length of continuous service with the Hospital (MetroHealth Medical Center or MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care), or in his classification, depending on the question involved, in accordance with the provisions of the Agreement. An employee shall have no seniority for the probationary period provided in Paragraph 36, but upon completion of the probationary period seniority shall be retroactive to the date of hire. Every quarter, upon request of the Union, the Hospital shall furnish the Union with several copies of a current seniority list for each unit showing the names of all non-probationary bargaining unit employees, their date of hire, and their date of entry into their current classification.

- (39) Seniority shall be broken (or terminated) when an employee:
 - (a) Quits;
 - (b) Is discharged for just cause;
 - (c) Is laid off for a period of more than twenty-four (24) consecutive months;
 - (d) Is absent without leave for three (3) or more work days, unless proper excuse for the absence is shown;
- (e) Is absent without leave for three (3) or more work days and fails to give notice of the reasons for such absence, unless the failure to give notice was beyond the reasonable control of the employee;
- (f) Fails to report for work when recalled from layoff within fourteen (14) calendar days from the date on which the Hospital sends the employee notice by certified mail (to the employee's last known address as shown on the Hospital's records), unless satisfactory excuse is shown;
- (g) Is on an authorized leave of absence for a period of twenty-four (24) consecutive months from the last day worked.
- (40) Every two (2) weeks the Hospital shall furnish the Union with a list (showing name, address, date of hire,

department, and job classification) of new bargaining unit employees, all employees who have been terminated, or transferred out of the bargaining unit, and all bargaining unit employees on leave of absence.

(41) Within thirty (30) days after the ratification of the Agreement and quarterly thereafter, upon request of the Union, the Hospital shall give to the Union the names of all employees covered by this Agreement, together with their addresses as they appear on the records of the Hospital.

(42) It is the obligation of each employee to keep the Hospital advised of his current address and, for all purposes of this Agreement, the Hospital shall rely on the last address supplied by an employee.

ARTICLE XIII - LATERAL TRANSFERS, SHIFT PREFERENCE, AND WORK WEEK PREFERENCE

(43) An employee may exercise his seniority for the purposes of transferring within his classification, changing shifts, or changing work weeks when an opening occurs within his classification on another shift or work week so long as the employee has the ability to perform the work involved, as follows:

(a) Lateral transfer within same classification but in new department -- job classification seniority within the Hospital;

(b) Lateral transfer within same classification and within same department -- job classification seniority within the department;

(c) Nothing in Sub-Paragraphs (a) and (b) above shall be construed as creating any right of seniority with respect to any work assignment within a job classification.

(d) Subparagraphs (a) and (b) shall not limit the Hospital's right to assign or transfer any employee to any other work assignment within his job classification, provided that such assignment or transfer is not discriminatory, or intended to permanently and/or indefinitely deprive an employee of his customary work assignment;

(e) Shift preference -- job classification seniority within the department;

(f) Work week preference -- job classification seniority within the department;

(g) No Employee may exercise the transfer rights provided in paragraph 43, including shift preference and work week preference, for a period of twelve (12) months after making a lateral transfer or nine (9) months following completion of the initial or any subsequent probationary period. Notwithstanding this provision, non-probationary part-time employees may exercise lateral transfer rights at any time for the purpose of transferring from a part-time position into a full-time position within the same job classification. Further, part-time probationary employees in the classification may bid on a full-time position within the classification and will be awarded that full-time position prior to the Hospital hiring a new employee (external hire) for the position provided there are no qualified lateral transfers or bids for the open full-time position, and further provided that:

- 1. The probationary part-time employee has a satisfactory work record.
- 2. The employee will serve a full 90-day probationary period from the beginning of the full-time status.
- (44) All lateral transfer opportunities shall be posted as vacancies in accordance with Paragraph 45. An employee who

desires a lateral transfer, change of shift, or change of work week under these provisions must make an application in writing (on forms provided by the Hospital) to the Human Resources Department, with a copy kept by the employee, and in such cases, an employee's preference shall supersede the job bidding-promotion provisions of this Agreement. Lateral transfer bids will only be accepted by Human Resources for a specific posted vacancy.

ARTICLE XIV - PERMANENT PROMOTIONS - JOB BIDDING

(45) When a vacancy occurs, or a new job is created, the Hospital shall post for five (5) consecutive days from the date of posting, on sufficient bulletin boards within the Hospital a notice of the opening with a copy to the Union. The Hospital will require Human Resources to confirm receipt of job postings with all satellite locations. The notice shall contain the job classification title, wage grade, position number, rate of pay, department, and area of the vacancy, shift, starting time and job description Employees who wish to be considered for the posted job must file a written application with the Human Resources Department by the end of the posting period. For purposes of these provisions, a "vacancy" is defined as a job opening (1) where the Hospital has increased the number of regular jobs available in a particular job classification or (2) where an opening occurs in an existing job as a result of a promotion, transfer, quit, discharge, or other termination of employment, and in either situation, the Hospital has determined that a vacancy exists. The Hospital agrees to increase the number of promotional posting bulletin boards.

(46) All applications timely filed will be reviewed by the Hospital and the job will be awarded within ten (10) work days on the basis of seniority, experience, skill, and ability to perform the work in question. If the skill, ability, and experience of two (2) or more employees are substantially equal, seniority shall govern. At the end of the tenth (10th) day a notice will be posted showing the name of the applicant selected for the job, or indicate that no one was selected. The Hospital will send a notice to the Union identifying all individuals who applied for the posted position as well as the name of the selected applicant. If no application is received, or none of the applicants is qualified for the job, the Hospital may fill the job by hiring a new employee or transferring a qualified probationary employee or a qualified junior employee. However, in the event that the position remains vacant for four (4) months from the date of its initial posting, the Hospital will repost the position subject to the provisions of Article XIV. In order to provide continuity of service while filling a vacancy or a new job, the Hospital shall have the right to fill openings and make transfers on a temporary basis pending the selection of an employee (including completion of the qualification period) for a job under these provisions.

Notwithstanding any of the provisions of this Agreement, the Hospital shall have the right to consider external candidates (non-employees) when a vacancy occurs in an entry-level position. An entry-level position shall be defined as a job classification for which the minimum required qualifications are a high school diploma or a G.E.D. or less and for which no experience is required. Entry-level positions shall include the following job classifications:

Clinic Aide	Environmental Services Aide		
File Clerk	Food Services Attendant		
Laundry Worker	Library Aide		
Mail Clerk	Messenger		
Pack Aide Launderer (MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care)			
Customer Service Partner (MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care)			

However, non-probationary part time employees seeking full-time entry-level positions and employees seeking to exercise their lateral transfer rights to vacant entry-level positions shall be given preference over external candidates.

(46-A)No employee may apply for a job in any classification in which the employee failed probation within the past eighteen (18) months.

(47) An employee awarded a job under these provisions will be given reasonable help and supervision and shall be

allowed a reasonable period of time to qualify, but not more than ninety (90) calendar days. Provided, however, that any absences of five (5) or more consecutive scheduled workdays shall toll the qualification period for the duration of the absence, extending the original ending date of the qualification period by the period of the absence. He will be considered to have qualified on the new job when he satisfactorily performs the required duties with no more supervision than is required by other qualified employees on the same or similar jobs, and when his record as to quality and quantity of work meets the standards applicable to the job. If he fails to qualify, he shall be returned to his former job, and, to the extent necessary, those who followed in the advance also shall be set back. If before the expiration of the trial period the employee, in the opinion of the Hospital, cannot qualify, the matter shall be discussed with the employee's steward before he is returned to his former job. Any claim of personal prejudice or any claim of discrimination for Union activity in connection with promotions or job bidding may be taken up as a grievance.

(48) Except where there is an established training program (with a training class and a training rate), an employee awarded a job under these provisions shall be promoted at the beginning of the pay period to the maximum extent practicable and shall be paid as follows:

(a) An employee shall receive a three percent (3%) increase for each higher wage grade the employee is promoted into, or the minimum of the grade, whichever is greater. After the employee's one (1) year anniversary in the new wage grade, the employee shall progress to the next step of the wage progression in the wage range. (For example, if an employee has a Wage Grade 1 position and is promoted into a Wage Grade 2 job, he shall receive a three percent (3%) wage increase. If a Wage Grade 1 employee promotes to a Wage Grade 3 position, he shall receive a six percent (6%) wage increase, etc.) In the event an employee promotes into a wage grade and as a result of the minimum wage promotion increase, the employee's wage rate exceeds the top rate for that wage grade, the employee's wage rate will be red-circled. Thereafter, that employee will receive the annual negotiated wage increase.

(49) All new employees shall be ineligible for a promotion or transfer (except for a transfer from a part-time to a full-time position within the same job classification) until nine (9) months after successful completion of the initial probationary period. Further, an employee who obtains a promotion or transfer as a result of the job bidding procedure and successfully passes the trial period as set forth in Article XIV shall be ineligible to bid for vacancies or new jobs for a period of nine (9) months from the date on which such employee successfully completes his probationary period on the new job. No employee shall be eligible for promotion or transfer under these provisions who has not satisfactorily completed the required probationary period, except as provided for in Paragraph 46 of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XV - LAY-OFFS

(50) It is agreed that the Hospital has an unqualified right to layoff employees in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.

(51) Whenever it is necessary because of lack of work or funds, or whenever it is advisable in the interest of the economy or efficiency or for any other reason to reduce the working force of the Hospital (MetroHealth Medical Center or MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care), the Hospital shall lay off employees pursuant to the following procedure. Specifically, the Hospital (MetroHealth Medical Center or MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care) shall lay off employees within the affected classification in the following order:

- 1) Temporary, seasonal, or causal employees performing bargaining unit work;
- 2) Part-time employees who have not completed their probationary period;
- 3) Part-time employees who have completed their probationary period;
- 4) Regular full-time employees who have not completed their probationary period;
- 5) Regular full-time employees who have completed their probationary period.

Within this framework, the Hospital reserves the sole and unilateral right to staff with part-time positions where operational considerations, as determined by the Hospital, warrant staffing by part-time employees. It is not the Hospital's intention to exercise this right for the sole purpose of replacing full-time employees with part-time employees.

(51-A)Full-time employees displaced by reason of layoff or job abolishment may exercise the options set forth below. Bumping shall be permitted only within a defined Hospital (i.e. MetroHealth Medical Center or MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care) and employees may not bump between Hospitals. Part-time employees may bump only other part-time employees.

(52) Prior to implementing any layoffs, the Hospital will meet with the Union and give advance notification of the layoffs. Full-time employees displaced by reason of layoff or job abolishment may exercise the options set forth below. Bumping shall be permitted only within a defined Hospital (i.e., MetroHealth Medical Center or MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care) and employees may not bump between Hospitals. Part-time employees may bump only other part-time employees.

A displaced employee may exercise the options listed below using Hospital seniority only:

- 1) Bump the least senior full-time employee (Hospital seniority) in the employee's classification for which the employee is qualified (regardless of department or shift); or
- 2) Bump the least senior part-time employee in the employee's classification for which the employee is qualified (regardless of department or shift): or
- 3) In any previously held classification for which the employee is qualified: a) bump the least senior employee who works on the same shift as the displaced employee (regardless of department) or b) bump the least senior employee with the same or next highest number of hours of work as the displaced employee (regardless of department or shift): or
- Accept any vacancy in an equal or lower rated job for which the employee is qualified. 5) If, and only if, options
 1, 2, 3 and 4 above are unavailable, the employee may bump the least senior employee in any entry-level position as defined in Paragraph 46.
 - 6) A direct layoff may be taken at any stage after option 1.

(53) Before any bargaining unit employee is actually laid off, the Hospital and the Union will meet for the purpose of attempting to find an available bargaining unit job with the Hospital which the employee is qualified to perform, and if any such job is available the employee will be given the option of accepting it rather than being laid off.

(54) The following special rules shall apply in the event a probationary employee is displaced on account of job abolishment, layoff or by reason of being bumped pursuant to the procedures set forth in Paragraph 51. Specifically, if the displaced employee is on probation as a result of job bidding (employee has held another bargaining unit job), the employee must either:

1) Accept an assignment to an available vacancy for which the employee is qualified; or

2. Accept an assignment to replace another probationary employee with less seniority (regardless of department or shift); or

3) Elect to return to the displaced employee's former job if it still exists.

If the displaced employee is on probation and has not held another bargaining unit job (new hire), the employee must take a direct layoff.

(55) In all bumping situations, a bumping employee must be qualified, in the opinion of the Hospital, immediately to perform the work of the bumped employee or that required in a vacant position without on-the-job training, subject to a brief orientation period. Further, employees accepting a position not previously held shall serve a ninety (90) calendar day probationary period.

(56) Employees shall be recalled in the reverse order of layoff. An employee on lay-off will be given fourteen (14) calendar days notice of recall from the date on which the Hospital sends the recall notice to the employee by certified mail (to his last known address as shown on the Hospital's records). In the event a job opening occurs in a lower rated classification, the most senior qualified employee on layoff will be recalled and given the option of accepting the job or not. If the employee accepts the job opening, he will have a right to claim his original classification in the event it becomes available within two (2) years of the date of layoff from the original classification. If the most senior qualified employee laid off declines the job, the next most senior qualified employee shall be accorded the same rights, and this procedure shall continue until the Hospital has exhausted the lay-off list. No new bargaining unit employees shall be hired until all qualified employees on layoff status desiring to return to work have been recalled.

(56-A)An employee who has been bumped pursuant to the provisions of this Article shall have the right for two (2) years to reclaim the position from which the employee was bumped and only in the event said position becomes available. An employee who exercises his right to bump in order to avoid a direct layoff shall be placed on a "Bump" recall list. An employee who is directly laid off shall be placed on a "Layoff" recall list. Employees shall be recalled to their classifications in the reverse order of bump and then in the reverse order of layoff.

(57) Regular full-time employees shall be given a minimum of two (2) weeks advance written notice of layoff indicating the circumstances which make the layoff necessary, and the Union shall receive a copy of all such layoff notices.

(58) In the event an employee is laid off, he shall receive payment for earned but unused vacation and for any unpaid overtime as soon as possible but no later than fourteen (14) days after the layoff.

ARTICLE XVI-HOURS OF WORK

(59) Except as otherwise provided herein, the normal work week for regular full-time employees shall be forty (40) hours of work in five (5) eight (8) hour days, exclusive of time allotted for meals during the period starting at 12:01 a.m. Sunday to midnight Saturday, except where mutually agreed by the Hospital and the Union. Provided, that this shall not be construed as a guarantee of hours of work per day or per week, and the Hospital reserves the right, as operational needs and conditions require, to establish and change hours of work and schedules of hours. If it should ever become necessary to reduce the regular work week below forty (40) hours, the Hospital will, before implementing such decision,

first meet with the Union to discuss the situation and attempt to work out an equitable solution to the problem.

(60) Departmental work schedules shall be posted every four (4) weeks no later than the Thursday noon of the third week of the posted schedule preceding the start of the period covered by the schedule. Deviations from the posted schedule may be made in order to meet the operational needs of the department, but the Hospital shall not change the posted schedule to avoid payment of overtime, and the Hospital shall give the involved employees and their steward written notice with acknowledgement by the affected employee of any such changes made prior to the employee s last day of scheduled work, preceding the change in schedule, as far in advance as circumstances reasonably allow. Changes made after the employee s last scheduled working day, preceding the change in schedule, should be made and confirmed by telephone. It is the intent of the Hospital to attempt to work out weekend scheduling and holiday scheduling of all employees on as fair and equitable basis as is practicable, and the Hospital and the Union shall meet to attempt to resolve any inequitable scheduling of weekend work. In furtherance of this obligation, all full-time employees shall be paid a premium of \$2.00 per hour for all hours worked on each full weekend after that employee has already worked the specific number of full weekends, according to his seniority, as set forth below:

Seniority

1 - 5 years	26 full weekends
5 - 13 years	25 full weekends
13 years or more	24 full weekends

For the purposes of this Paragraph, working a full weekend means working a full shift on both Saturday and Sunday on a given weekend, and not working a full weekend means not working on both Saturday and Sunday on a given weekend. However, under no circumstances shall there be any duplication of weekend premiums and an employee can never receive both the \$2.00 premium and time-and-one-half overtime pay for working on a weekend. Provided, that an employee who is scheduled to work on a weekend and does not work, whatever the reason, is subject to being re-scheduled on a subsequent weekend unless an employee is on an approved extended leave of absence which is based upon the full execution of leave of absence forms or a bona fide sick leave (paid or unpaid) of at least five (5) consecutive scheduled work days, or is on approved funeral leave, or is hospitalized during the weekend on which he is assigned to work. In order to carry out the obligations of this paragraph, the Hospital will keep an open record of all full weekends worked by each bargaining unit employee.

(61) To the extent possible, employees should be scheduled at the same time or similar start time, which is defined as within one (1) hour s time, within any week (e.g. the window for a regular 8 a.m. start would be between 7-9 a.m.). An employee will not be required to begin work at more than two different start times per week. Exceptions to this will be made for emergencies and changes made after the schedule is posted. Employees with regularly rotating schedules are excluded from this provision.

(62) Departments that regularly rotate employees between shifts shall not rotate an employee to more than two (2) different shifts during any work week, and it shall be the least senior eligible employee who rotates_from their primary shift.

(63) Except in case of emergency, customary practice (e.g., boiler room), or other mutually agreed upon voluntary arrangement with the Union, employees shall be allowed not less than thirty (30) minutes uninterrupted for a scheduled meal.

(64) There shall be two (2) fifteen (15) minute rest periods (i.e., from the time an employee stops working until the time he begins working) on each regular shift each work day. The rest periods will be scheduled by the department head at the convenience of the department, and, to the extent practicable, will be scheduled during the middle two (2) hours of each half shift, but they may not be scheduled immediately before or after the meal period or at the start or the end of a shift unless requested by the employee and agreed to by the Hospital.

(65) When an employee works beyond his regular quitting time, the employee shall receive a fifteen (15) minute paid rest period if the employee works two (2) hours but less than four (4) hours, and, in addition, a thirty (30) minute unpaid meal period if the employee works four (4) hours or longer (unless otherwise requested by the employee).

(65-A)Employees required to wear full uniforms (not including lab coats) shall receive a six (6) minute paid clean up period at the end of their shift, provided that clean-up periods for Plant Engineering and Laundry employees who currently receive fifteen (15) minute clean-up periods shall have those clean-up periods reduced to ten (10) minutes.

ARTICLE XVII - OVERTIME - PREMIUM PAY COMPENSATION

(66) The Hospital shall be the sole judge of the necessity for overtime.

(a) Non-scheduled overtime must be worked when assigned, provided the Hospital shall endeavor, insofar as it may be reasonably practicable, to provide the affected employee(s) with at least one (1) hour advance notice. For purposes of this Article, non-scheduled overtime means all overtime scheduled twenty-four (24) hours or less in advance. However, in such cases, it is the policy and practice of the Hospital to assign overtime, where practicable, in accordance with that procedure used in assigning scheduled overtime as set forth in sub-paragraph (b) of this paragraph.

(b) Scheduled overtime (overtime scheduled more than twenty-four (24) hours in advance) will be offered to qualified employees in accordance with departmental (or departmental classification) seniority. Scheduled overtime may initially be refused, but if sufficient qualified employees do not voluntarily accept, the Hospital shall mandate the overtime work to qualified employees within the classification involved in the inverse order of seniority_on a rotating basis and employees must work such overtime may initially be refused, but if sufficient qualified evertime may initially be refused, but if sufficient qualified employees within the various nursing departments, scheduled overtime may initially be refused, but if sufficient qualified employees within the classification, but if sufficient qualified employees within the classification, within the nursing unit involved, in the inverse order of seniority on a rotating basis and employees must work such overtime when assigned. Every three (3) months (1/1, 4/1, 7/1, and 10/1), the rotation of mandatory overtime will automatically return to the least senior employee.

(c) If overtime is not worked for any reason, it will be rescheduled.

(d) Supervisors who do not generally perform bargaining unit work shall not be allowed to perform bargaining unit work on an overtime basis except where an emergency exists or where there are no qualified bargaining unit employees available to do the work.

(67) The Hospital shall endeavor, insofar as it may be reasonably practicable, to make an equitable distribution of overtime over a period of three (3) months among qualified employees within a departmental classification (or within a nursing unit for employees in the nursing departments). Employees who are offered overtime and for any reasons refuse or fail to work the overtime shall be credited as if they had worked the overtime for the purpose of overtime distribution.

(68) A record of overtime hours worked daily by each employee shall be openly displayed in each department (or nursing unit as defined) and brought up to date monthly.

(69) Except as otherwise provided herein, the regular work week for regular full-time employees will be forty (40) hours, and all hours worked in excess of forty (40) in one (1) work week will be paid for at the rate of time and one-half (1-1/2). Provided, however, that consistent with the provisions of the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act, the Hospital may schedule employees who work in special care departments (e.g. operating room) for eighty (80) straight-time hours of work over two (2) work weeks so long as such employees receive time and one-half (1-1/2) for all hours worked in excess of eighty (80) in two (2) weeks, time and one-half (1-1/2) for all hours worked in excess of eight (8) in one (1) twenty-four (24) hour period beginning with the start of their shift, and four (4) days off during the two (2) work weeks. The premium for hours worked in excess of eight (8) hours in one (1) twenty-four (24) hour period shall not be paid for time worked as part of the employee s next regular shift.

(70) Paid vacation hours and paid holiday hours shall be counted as hours worked for the purpose of computing overtime. Specifically, the following rules shall apply to holidays:

(a) When an employee works on a recognized general holiday under the collective bargaining agreement between the Hospital and the Union, the employee will receive eight (8) hours of work credit for the holiday plus credit for the hours actually worked toward the computation of total weekly hours worked for the purpose of computing weekly overtime, unless the employee is scheduled for an alternate day off anytime during the two (2) week pay period in which the holiday falls. For example, if an employee works on a Monday Holiday which falls in the 2nd week of the pay period, and an alternate day off is scheduled during the 1st week, no overtime will be calculated based on the holiday hours.

(b) The Hospital shall have the unrestricted right to schedule any employee who works on a recognized general holiday to be off on another work day during the same pay period, and this right to schedule the employee off shall be exercised at the sole discretion of the Hospital.

(c) If an employee works on a recognized general holiday, excluding those designated as Floating Holidays, and thereafter, under the terms of this Agreement, receives weekly work credit of forty-one (41) or more hours, resulting in time and one-half 1-1/2) overtime pay for working in excess of forty (40) hours, the employee shall not receive the Two Dollar (\$2.00) per hour holiday premium set forth in Paragraph 73 of this Agreement. On the other hand, if an employee works on a recognized general holiday and thereafter, for any reason, does not receive weekly work credit in excess of forty-one (41) hours, then the employee shall receive said Two Dollars (\$2.00) premium for the hours actually worked on the holiday. However, under no circumstances shall an employee ever receive both the Two Dollar (\$2.00) premium and time and one-half (1-1/2) overtime pay as a result of working on a recognized general holiday, except as allowed in this section.

(d) Holiday work schedules shall be posted in accordance with Paragraph 60 of this Agreement.

(71) An employee who, within the same work week, is required to begin work with less than a twelve (12) hour break shall be paid time and one-half (1-1/2) for all hours worked on the new shift. For example, if an employee works from 3:00 p.m. to 11:30 p.m. on Tuesday and on Wednesday is required to work from 7:00 a.m. to 3:30 p.m., the employee will receive time and one-half (1-1/2) for all hours worked on Wednesday.

(72) There shall be no pyramiding of overtime or other premium pay compensation except as otherwise provided by this Agreement.

(73) The Hospital shall have the right to require any employee to work on any of the holidays recognized in Paragraph 95, and an employee who works on a recognized holiday (excluding the birthday holiday) shall be paid, in addition to the regular rate of pay for the hours worked, eight (8) hours straight-time pay at his regular rate for the holiday, as set forth in Paragraph 70 above. Furthermore, all employees in the job classifications covered by this Agreement who are not receiving time and one-half (1-1/2) except as set forth in Paragraph 70 above shall receive a special premium of two dollars (\$2.00) per hour for all hours worked on a general holiday (excluding the birthday holiday) and this premium shall be added on to the employee's compensation for that period in addition to any other overtime or premium compensation which the employee may have earned during the same pay period.

ARTICLE XVIII - JOB EVALUATION AND CLASSIFICATION

(74) The administration and operation of a job evaluation program, including job description and job classifications, are the function and responsibilities solely of the Hospital, and the Hospital will continue to provide the Union with copies of job descriptions for all job classifications in the bargaining unit as such descriptions become available. Such job descriptions will list the major or central duties of the described job classifications and shall include automatically all functionally related duties, whether listed or unlisted. Furthermore, such job descriptions are for information purposes only and in no way restrict or limit job content or employee work assignments. Any change in job descriptions shall first be furnished to the Union prior to the effective date of the change.

(74-A) The Hospital shall update and provide all appropriate personnel with the necessary training manuals.

(75) If substantial changes in the method of operation, tools, or equipment of a job occur, or if the qualifications for an existing job are substantially changed, or if a new job is established which has not been previously classified, the Hospital shall meet with the Union for the purpose of negotiating a rate of pay and classification or placing the job in an existing classification. In the event the Hospital and the Union are unable to reach agreement on the issue, the Hospital shall in writing establish a temporary rate and classification, and will promptly notify the Union in writing. Thereafter, the Union can file a grievance to Step 3 of the grievance procedure. The arbitrator shall have the authority to establish a new rate and classification or place the job in an existing classification. Any award of the arbitrator shall be retroactive to the date the Hospital placed the rate into effect. Any rate and classification mutually agreed to by the Hospital and the Union, or decided by the arbitrator, shall become part of the wage agreement attached hereto.

(76) Except as provided in Paragraph 74 above, job evaluation and/or job description shall not be subject to the provisions of the grievance procedure. Provided, however, that the Hospital recognizes the right of an employee to receive a copy of his performance evaluations, to review such performance evaluations with his supervisor, and to make personal comments in writing regarding such performance evaluations. In addition, an employee who has completed his probationary period has the right to appeal to the grievance procedure any disciplinary action based upon failure to meet the required standard of job performance (including the fairness of the standard), or any disciplinary action based upon Union activities.

(76-A)Bargaining unit employees may be required to assist in the orientation of new employees (i.e., day to day implementation/application of specific job requirements).

ARTICLE XIX - TEMPORARY TRANSFERS

(77) The Hospital may require an employee to perform any work within his job classification. Furthermore, the Hospital may temporarily transfer employees from one job classification to another, either within the same department or to another department, or in or out of the bargaining unit, so long as such transfer is not discriminatory, and provided that such transfers out of the bargaining unit shall not be without the consent of the transferred employee. A temporary transfer shall not exceed thirty (30) work days, except (1) to fill a vacancy caused by an employee being on sick or other approved leave of absence, (2) to provide vacation relief scheduling, (3) to fill an opening temporarily pending permanent filling of such opening, or (4) to meet an emergency situation.

(77-A)To the extent it is necessary for an employee to "float" from his/her regular unit to another unit within a nursing department, the "float" shall be on a voluntary basis. If there are insufficient volunteers, the "float" shall first be assigned to the least senior employee in the affected unit and thereafter assigned in the inverse order of seniority to the extent practicable so that "float" assignments shall be made on an equitable basis. Upon request, the Hospital will provide the Union with a copy of its records documenting "float" assignments.

(78) When an employee is temporarily transferred to another job classification in the bargaining unit and performs work in the new job classification that is out of his own wage grade, he shall --

(a) Receive his regular rate of pay if the rate of pay for such other classification is lower than his regular rate;

(b) Receive a minimum of three percent (3%) wage increase of his regular hourly rate for each wage grade higher than his regular wage grade if the employee works one (1) consecutive hour or more in the higher rated wage grade job classification.

Provided, that the Hospital will not rotate temporary transfer assignments in order to deprive employees of the opportunity to qualify for a higher rate of pay under these temporary transfer provisions. Provided further, that any employee who is temporarily transferred to a higher rated wage grade shall receive notice of his change of status at the time of transfer to the new position.

(78-A)Departments that regularly rotate employees between shifts shall not rotate an employee to more than two (2) different shifts during any work week, and it shall be the least senior eligible employee who rotates from his/her primary shift.

ARTICLE XX - LEAVES OF ABSENCE

(79) Funeral Leave. An employee will be granted a leave of absence with pay, to be charged against his accumulated paid sick leave, in the event of the death of the employee's grandparent, brother, sister, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, father, father-in-law, mother, mother-in-law, spouse, child, grandchild, legal guardian, or other person who stands in place of a parent (loco parentis), as follows:

(a) If the funeral in within 300 miles of Cuyahoga County -- three (3) consecutive working_days;

(b) If the funeral is more than 300 miles from Cuyahoga County -- five (5) consecutive working_days.

To be eligible for funeral leave, an employee must provide the Hospital with a funeral form (to be supplied by the Hospital) and must attend the funeral, and failure to do so, or a misrepresentation of facts related to a funeral leave, shall be proper cause for disciplinary action (including forfeiture of pay for the leave). At the discretion of the Hospital an employee may be given additional funeral time off with pay to be charged to the employees accumulated sick or vacation leave or additional funeral time off_without pay. Any additional funeral time off shall be tracked.

One (1) day, up to eight (8) hours, used as funeral leave will be counted as time worked for the purpose of computing overtime entitlement.

(80) In the event of the death of a relative other than those listed in Paragraph 78, the employee will be granted a leave of absence with pay, to be charged against his accumulated paid sick leave, for one (1) day to attend the funeral (on the same conditions set forth in Paragraph 80).

(81) Jury and Witness Leave. An employee called for jury duty or subpoenaed as a witness will be granted a leave of absence for the period of the jury service or witness service, and will be compensated for the difference between his regular pay and jury pay or witness pay for work absences necessarily caused by the jury duty or witness duty. A shift employee who is called for jury duty will be provided a Monday through Friday, day shift schedule. To be eligible for jury duty pay or witness duty pay, an employee must present to the Hospital a jury pay voucher or witness pay voucher showing the period of service and the amount of jury pay or witness pay received.

(81-A)Litigation Leave. An employee shall be granted an unpaid excused absence, or upon request, vacation leave, in the event the employee is required to appear in court for reasons outside the scope of his/her employment, and other than jury duty. Provided, however, the employee shall provide two (2) weeks prior written notice of any court appearance and the employee shall provide written verification of his/her appearance in court.

(82) Military Leave. An employee shall be granted a leave of absence for military duty in accordance with State and Federal law. Furthermore, an employee who is a member of the Ohio National Guard, Ohio Defense Corp., Naval Militia, or member of other reserve components of the Armed Forces of the United States, shall be entitled to leave of absence from his respective duties without loss of pay for such time as he is in military service on field training or active duty for periods not to exceed one hundred seventy six (176) hours in any calendar year.

(83) Union Leave. At the request of the Union, a leave of absence without pay shall be granted to any employee selected for a Union office, employed by the Union, or required to attend a Union convention or perform any other function on behalf of the Union necessitating a suspension of active employment. The granting of such a leave will be based upon the operational needs of the employee's department.

(84) Education Leave. An employee may be granted a leave of absence without pay for educational purposes relating to the Hospital's operations. The granting of such leave will be based upon the operational needs of the employee's department.

(84-A)Tuition reimbursement, up to a maximum of \$1,500.00 per calendar year, shall be made available to employees who successfully complete courses in accordance with criteria set forth in the Hospital's Tuition Assistance Policy.

(85) Family and Medical Leave. Family and Medical Leave shall be administered in accordance with the Hospital's current FMLA policy.

(86) Sick Leave Without Pay. An employee shall be granted a leave of absence without pay (except as to the extent he may be entitled to sick pay) for a period not to exceed six (6) months because of personal illness or injury upon request supported by medical evidence satisfactory to the Hospital if the employee has reported such illness or injury to his department head (or immediate supervisor if the department head is absent) by no later than the second day of absence. An employee on sick leave will be required to keep the Hospital up to date on the progress of his illness or injury as circumstances allow. If the illness or disability continues beyond six (6) months, additional sick leave may be granted by the Hospital, upon request. Any employee who has been on sick leave for five (5) or more consecutive days may be required, at the discretion of the Hospital, to submit to (and pass) a physical examination before being permitted to return to work. In the event of a difference of opinion as to the employee's physical status between the employee's physician and the Hospital's physician, the issue shall be submitted to a mutually selected and paid for "third physician" whose decision shall be final and binding on both parties. Consecutive leaves of absence separated by fewer than thirty (30) calendar days shall be considered the same leave of absence if the successive leave is for the same condition as the initial leave.

(87) Personal Leave. For those employees who have completed four (4) months of continuous full-time service, personal leaves of absence may be granted without pay for good cause shown for a period not to exceed ninety (90) days. The granting of such leaves will be based upon the operational needs of the employee's department. Such leaves of absence may be extended by the Hospital, but in no case will any employee be permitted to exceed three (3) months continuous leave under this paragraph in any one (1) calendar year except in serious or unusual circumstances.

(88-A)Sick Leave With Pay. An employee shall be granted sick leave with pay for personal illness (including pregnancy) or injury as follows:

- (a) He must have completed one (1) month of service.
- (b) Thereafter, paid sick leave will be earned and accumulated at the rate of three and one-tenths (3-1/10) hours for each completed eighty (80) hours of service.
- (c) If and when any accumulated sick leave is used, the employee will accumulate sick leave at the rate previously specified.
- (d) Pay for sick leave shall be at the employee s regular straight-time hourly rate (or portion thereof if absent for less than a full day).
 - (e) An employee whose wife gives birth shall be granted five (5) days leave for the care of the employee's wife and family, to be charged against the employee's accumulated sick leave.

(88-B)To be eligible for paid sick leave, an employee must report the reason for his absence to his department head (or his immediate supervisor if the department head is not on the Hospital premises) at least two (2) hours before the employee's scheduled starting time, unless emergency conditions are shown to have prevented such notification.

(88-C) An employee who is absent on leave sick may be required to present a doctor's certificate stating the cause of his absence, regardless of the length of the absence. The Hospital will ordinarily not require such certificate in the case of illness or injury of less than five (5) days duration except in the case of employees who frequently take sick leave for one (1) to five (5) days and the employee has been so notified in writing.

In addition, an employee shall be required to present a doctor's certificate stating the cause of the absence when that employee calls in sick on a date that was previously denied, in writing, for vacation or a birthday holiday. However, in the event a vacation request of one (1) week or more is denied, and the employee subsequently utilizes up to three (3) days of sick leave during that period (other than in conjunction with a holiday), a certificate will not be required unless appropriate under other provisions of this Agreement.

Under no circumstances shall an employee be permitted to continue working if such employee cannot fulfill the requirements of the job or if there is a serious question that such employee is jeopardizing his own health or the health of other employees or patients.

(88-D) An employee transferring to the Hospital from any other public agency of the State shall transfer his accumulated but unused paid sick leave accrued in such employment to his sick leave account at the Hospital, subject to the limitations imposed on sick leave by this Agreement. An employee who is re-hired by the Hospital shall be credited with the amount of accumulated paid sick leave he had accrued on the date of his termination.

(88-E) The Hospital will, once a year during the month of January, furnish each employee with a written statement showing the amount of his accumulated paid sick leave.

(89) Sick Leave Conversion. An employee who retires after a minimum of ten (10) years employment who has unused accumulated sick leave shall be allowed to convert one-half (1/2) of said sick leave into a lump sum cash payment, up to a maximum of one hundred (100) days of pay. This lump sum sick leave conversion payment will be made within thirty (30) days after date of retirement.

(89-A)At the end of each calendar year, employees may cash out up to five (5) accrued sick days provided that there are five (5) or more accrued sick days (i.e., 40 hours) available for use. For example, an employee who has 60 hours of accumulated sick leave may cash out from one day (8 hours) to five days (40 hours) of such time.

(90) An employee shall be granted sick leave with pay for illness (including pregnancy) or injury of the employee or a member of his immediate family, or medical, dental, or optical examination or treatment of an employee or a member of his immediate family; or if a member of the immediate family is afflicted with a contagious disease and requires the care and attendance of the employee; or when through exposure to a contagious disease, the presence of the employee at his job would jeopardize the health of others. The term "immediate family as used in this Paragraph applies only to those relatives specified in Paragraph 80 of this Agreement who are living in the employee's household, but in cases of genuine hardship which is supported by medical verification the appointing authority may exercise his discretion to grant paid sick leave where the immediate family member does not live in the employee's household.

(91) An employee who is hurt on the job shall have the option to use his paid sick leave, workmen's compensation benefits, or his vacation, whichever he prefers.

(92) General Leave Provisions. An employee who is on an approved leave of absence of three (3) months or less from the last day worked as provided herein shall accumulate seniority during the entire period and upon return to work shall be assigned to the position which he formerly occupied or to a similar position if his former position no longer exists. An employee who is on an approved leave of absence of at least three (3) months but not more than two (2) years from the last day worked shall accumulate seniority during that entire period and upon return to work shall be assigned to the classification and shift which he formerly occupied or to a similar classification for which he is qualified at the sole discretion of the Hospital.

(93) All leaves of absence (and any extensions thereof) must be applied for and granted in writing on forms to be provided by the Hospital. An employee will be given a copy of the approved application. An employee may, upon request, return to work prior to the expiration of any leave of absence if such early return is agreed to by the Hospital.

(94) If it is found that a leave of absence is not actually being used for the purpose for which it is granted, the Hospital may cancel the leave, direct the employee to return to work, and impose disciplinary action.

(95) An employee who fails to report to work at the expiration or cancellation of a leave of absence or fails to secure an extension of such leave shall be deemed to be absent without leave and shall be subject to loss of seniority under Paragraph 39.

ARTICLE XXI - HOLIDAYS

(96) All regular full-time employees shall be entitled to ten (10) paid holidays as follows:

New Year's Day	Labor Day
Martin Luther King Day	Columbus Day
President s Day	Veteran s Day
Memorial Day	Thanksgiving Day
Independence Day	Christmas Day

(96-A)Martin Luther King Day, Presidents Day, Columbus Day, and Veteran's Day shall be designated Floating Holidays. Following the occurrence of the recognized dates for Martin Luther King Day, Presidents Day, Columbus Day, and Veteran's Day, each full-time employee may schedule a Floating Holiday on a date mutually selected by the employee and the employer prior to December 1st of the accrual year. If the employee does not receive the day(s) off prior to December 1st of the accrual year, the employee shall receive pay for all earned, but unused Floating Holidays or shall have those days credited to the employee's vacation bank. However, if the employee chooses to be paid for any earned, but unused Floating Holidays, it shall not be counted as hours worked for the purposes of computing overtime.

(97) All regular full-time employees who have completed one (1) year of service or more shall be entitled to receive their birthday as a paid holiday, and the birthday holiday is to be taken on a date mutually selected by the employee and the Hospital during the pay period in which the employee's birthday falls.

(98) To be eligible for holiday pay (except Floating Holidays or the employee's birthday), an employee must have worked his last regular scheduled work day before and his first regular scheduled work day after the holiday unless absent because of bona fide illness or injury, vacation, or funeral leave, but in no case shall an employee receive holiday pay if he receives no pay during the holiday week (regardless of the cause of the absence).

(98-A)Where feasible, an A/B Holiday rotation can be established or continued.

(98-B)An A/B/C Holiday rotation system based on either unit or facility wide requirements will be mutually established at the SNE facility or nursing department. Part-time employees shall be included in the holiday rotation system for purposes of scheduling.

(98-C)Employees may not schedule or take vacation on a holiday that they are scheduled to work, unless another employee works in their place and the Hospital approves the change.

(98-D) An employee who is scheduled to work on a holiday and does not work that holiday for any reason shall be required to work a subsequent holiday as selected by the employer.

(99) An employee who does not work on a recognized holiday shall receive eight (8) hours straight-time pay at his regular hourly rate.

(100) Should any of the recognized holidays fall on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be observed as the holiday. Should any of the recognized holidays fall on a Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be observed as the holiday.

ARTICLE XXII - VACATIONS

(101) All regular full-time employees shall be granted the following vacation leave with full pay each year based upon their length of County service as follows:

LENGTH OF SERVICE	LENGTH OF VACATION
(a) One (1) year but less than Five (5) years	Two (2) calendar weeks
(b) Five (5) years but less than Thirteen (13) years	Three (3) calendar weeks
(c) Thirteen (13) years but less than Twenty-three (23) years	Four (4) calendar weeks
(d) Twenty-three (23) years or more	Five (5) calendar weeks

(102) An employee becomes eligible for vacation leave on his employment anniversary date, and vacation leave shall be taken by the employee within twelve (12) months after it is earned. Provided, that the Hospital may permit an employee to accumulate and carry over his vacation leave to the following year, but in no case shall vacation leave be carried over for more than three (3) years.

(103) If an employee is terminated (voluntarily or involuntarily) prior to taking his vacation, he shall receive the pro-rated portion of any fully earned but unused vacation leave at the time of separation (including any unused vacation leave which he had accrued under Paragraph 103). In case of death of an employee, the unused vacation leave shall be paid to his estate or in accordance with R.C. Section 2113.04.

(104) An employee's paid vacation leave shall be adjusted (or pro-rated) to reflect time spent on unpaid leave(s) of absence totaling thirty (30) days or more (i.e., for each thirty (30) days spent on unpaid leave of absence, an employee shall lose one-twelfth (1/12) of his regular paid vacation leave).

(105) If a recognized holiday falls within an employee's vacation leave, the employee shall receive an additional paid vacation day in lieu of the holiday (either at the beginning or at the end of his vacation).

(106) Employees may take their vacation during the calendar year. During the first quarter of each calendar year employees will be given an opportunity to indicate on a form provided by the Hospital their vacation leave preferences, and by May 1 a written vacation schedule (by departments) will be prepared by the Hospital (and individual written confirmation given to each employee) with priority given to employees according to their departmental (or departmental classification) seniority by shift to the extent consistent with the operational needs of the department, except that in the various nursing departments, priorities will be determined and vacations will be scheduled according to seniority by shift and unit consistent with the operational needs of the unit. If a Department/Unit cannot give at least one employee per shift vacation, vacations will be scheduled by seniority across all three shifts. Once the departmental (or nursing unit) vacation schedule is determined it shall not be changed without the consent of the involved employee (s) except in response to an operational emergency. All changes in a vacation schedule must be in writing and acknowledged by both the Hospital and the involved employee (s). Any employee who fails to make his vacation application during the appropriate period will be given his vacation leave without regard to seniority based upon when the application was made. Vacation requests made in the first quarter shall be made for the period of May 1 through April 30 of the following year. Vacation requests made after May 1st will be responded to as soon as possible, but not later than 21 days from the request.

(107) The Hospital agrees to provide any employee with his vacation check, upon request, prior to the effective date of the employee's scheduled vacation date. An employee who requests said vacation pay must make application two (2) weeks prior to the date of the effective vacation period.

ARTICLE XXIII - SHIFT PREMIUM

(108) Effective June 1, 1995, employees who work four (4) hours or more as part of a regular shift assignment between the hours of 6:00 P.M. and 6:00 A.M. shall receive a shift premium of sixty cents (\$.60) per hour for all hours worked.

(109) Relief employees assigned to the second and third shifts will receive, in addition to their regular rate, the shift differential provided herein for their respective shift.

ARTICLE XXIV - ON-CALL PAY

(110) An employee who is required to remain on call on the Hospital's premises or so close thereto that he cannot use the time effectively for his own purposes (including being confined to his home) shall be paid four dollars (\$4.00) per hour for all such hours spent on call.

(111) An employee who is on call on week days (Monday through Friday) who is only required to leave word with the Hospital where he can be reached shall be paid twenty dollars (\$20.00) for the entire on-call period.

(112) An employee who is on call on weekends (Saturday and Sunday) or Holidays who is only required to leave word with the Hospital where he can be reached shall be paid thirty dollars (\$30.00) for the entire on-call period.

ARTICLE XXV - REPORT-IN PAY

(113) An employee who reports to work on a regularly scheduled work day without previous notice not to report shall receive a minimum of four (4) hours work (or four (4) hours pay in lieu thereof) at his applicable hourly rate.

.

ARTICLE XXVI - CALL-IN PAY

(114) An employee who is called in to work at a time when he is not regularly scheduled to report for work shall receive a minimum of four (4) hours work (or four (4) hours pay in lieu thereof) at his applicable hourly rate. Provided, however, that an employee who is called in and has already qualified for the overtime premium rate, either by having worked forty (40) hours in the work week or eight (8) hours in the work day, shall be given the option of returning home after completing the work which required the call-in and being paid four (4) hours at the straight-time rate or working the full four (4) hours on any assigned work and being paid four (4) hours at the time and one-half (1-1/2) rate.

ARTICLE XXVII - MILEAGE ALLOWANCE

(115) Employees who in connection with their work duties are required to travel from one Hospital facility to another Hospital facility shall receive a travel allowance equal to the maximum allowable travel allowance as provided by applicable Internal Revenue Service regulations.

ARTICLE XXVIII - UNIFORMS AND PROTECTIVE GEAR

(116) The Hospital will continue its present practice on work uniforms. In addition, the Hospital will provide uniforms to all maintenance employees at MetroHealth Medical Center (on the same basis as maintenance employees at MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care). Also, the Hospital will provide lab coats to all employees who are required to wear lab coats at no cost to those employees. Furthermore, the Hospital will provide the individual gloves, hats, and rubber boots (which go over socks) to all maintenance employees who use this equipment on a regular basis, and within three (3) months after the execution of this Agreement the Hospital shall furnish all maintenance employees the tools and equipment which are necessary for them to perform their work, subject to a reasonable system of accountability and financial responsibility of the employees. Any employees who receive individual protective gear or uniforms must return all such gear or uniforms upon termination of employment, and if they fail to do so they may be personally liable for the cost.

ARTICLE XXIX -- PART-TIME EMPLOYEES -- BENEFITS

(117) A part-time employee shall receive paid holidays, paid vacations, and a paid birthday holiday on a pro-rata basis for all hours spent in active pay status during every work week in which they are in active pay status twenty (20) or more hours. For example, a part-time employee who regularly works twenty (20) hours per week will receive four (4) hours pay for each recognized holiday and twenty (20) hours of pay for each week of earned vacation.

(117-A) Part-time employees may elect to take and be paid for vacation time they have accumulated up to a maximum of the weekly average of hours actually worked in the previous year when requesting vacation. (e.g. A twenty hour part-timer who actually worked an average of thirty hours a week during the previous year could be paid for thirty hours of vacation during a one-week period.)

ARTICLE XXX - PAY DAY AND PAY PROCEDURE

(118) All employees shall be paid by direct deposit to an account designated by the employee. Employees working on their regular shifts on payday will receive their pay stubs in a manner that will not result in a loss of time by the employees. Employees who are not scheduled to work on payday will receive their pay stubs on the day before the payday if such day is not a holiday, if they are available at the Hospital.

(119) Any employee who reports six (6) minutes or less late for the start of his shift shall not be docked. If he is seven (7) minutes or more late, he shall be docked one-tenth of an hour for each tenth of an hour (or fractional part thereof) that he is late, including the first tenth. In other words, if an employee is seven (7) minutes late, he shall be docked two-tenths; if he is fifty-five (55) minutes late, he shall be docked one (1) full hour. Any employee who leaves work early for any reason shall be docked in increments of six (6) minutes.

(119-A) The Hospital shall process any pay check error of eight (8) or more hours pay within two (2) working days after pay day.

ARTICLE XXXI - INSURANCE

(120) The Hospital and the Union agree to continue the Joint Trust Fund in strict accordance and conformity with the laws of the State of Ohio and the Federal government, and such Fund shall be continued and administered solely for the purpose of providing insurance benefits for eligible employees in accordance with terms and conditions of the applicable documents and all applicable laws, State and Federal. Furthermore, such Fund shall be administered and managed by an equal number of Trustees selected by the Hospital and the Union, and it is agreed that the Trustees are at all times bound to follow and strictly adhere to all applicable documents and all applicable laws, State and Federal.

(121) For employees who have completed their probationary period, the Hospital shall contribute to the Fund fifty-five dollars and seventy-five cents (\$55.75) per month for each part time employee and ninety-nine dollars and seventy-five cents (\$99.75) for each full time employee for Prescription, Dental, Vision, Hearing, and Life Insurance Coverage.

Effective : 1/1/05 =\$111.75 per month for each full time employee.

Effective: 1/1/06 =\$125.75 per month for each full time employee.

(122) For purposes of determining eligibility for contributions to the Fund, a regular full-time and/or part-time employee must have worked for ninety (90) days prior to the first (1st) of the month and must be regularly assigned and budgeted to work forty (40) hours or more per pay period.

(123)All full-time eligible employees who participate in the hospitalization insurance plan shall make the following contributions toward the monthly premium cost each pay period (based upon 26 pay periods per year):

	Single	Single Plus 1	Family
Effective: 3/01/2004	\$25.00	\$30.00	\$35.00
Effective: 1/01/2005	\$30.00	\$35.00	\$40.00
Effective: 1/01/2006	\$35.00	\$40.00	\$45.00

(123-A) In addition, the Hospital will pay its share of the monthly premium cost of the hospitalization insurance plan, as set forth in paragraph 123, for all full-time eligible employees presently covered by the Hospital with one year of service or more for the first three (3) months of an unpaid sick leave of absence.

(124) Effective February 4, 2004, bargaining unit employees shall be paid in accordance with the following wage grade schedule:

Ranges Effective February 4, 2004 (3.0%)						
	Start	Step 1	Step 2	Step 3	Step 4	
1	\$ 8.53	\$ 9.05	\$ 9.58	\$ 10.17	\$ 10.75	
2	\$ 9.05	\$ 9.58	\$ 10.17	\$ 10.75	\$ 11.41	
3	\$ 9.58	\$ 10.17	\$ 10.75	\$ 11.41	\$ 12.10	
4	\$ 10.17	\$ 10.75	\$ 11.41	\$ 12.10	\$ 12.82	
5	\$ 10.75	\$ 11.41	\$ 12.10	\$ 12.82	\$ 13.60	
6	\$ 11.41	\$ 12.10	\$ 12.82	\$ 13.60	\$ 14.41	
7	\$ 12.12	\$ 12.85	\$ 13.63	\$ 14.44	\$ 15.31	
8	\$ 13.41	\$ 14.22	\$ 15.07	\$ 15.98	\$ 16.94	
9	\$ 14.35	\$ 15.20	\$ 16.13	\$ 17.09	\$ 18.12	
10	\$ 15.37	\$ 16.27	\$ 17.25	\$ 18.29	\$ 19.38	
11	\$ 16.42	\$ 17.42	\$ 18.47	\$ 19.57	\$ 20.74	
12	\$ 17.58	\$ 18.65	\$ 19.77	\$ 20.94	\$ 22.20	
13	\$ 18.58	\$ 19.72	\$ 20.89	\$ 22.13	\$ 23.46	

Effective January 30, 2005, bargaining unit employees shall be paid in accordance with the following wage grade schedule:

Ranges Effective January 30, 2005 (3.0%)

	() () () () () () () () () ()	-	•	/	,
	Start	Step1	Step 2	Step 3	Step 4
1	\$ 8.79	\$ 9.32	\$ 9.87	\$ 10.48	\$ 11.07
2	\$ 9.32	\$ 9.87	\$ 10.48	\$ 11.07	\$ 11.75
3	\$ 9.87	\$ 10.48	\$ 11.07	\$ 11.75	\$ 12.46
4	\$ 10.48	\$ 11.07	\$ 11.75	\$ 12.46	\$ 13.20
5	\$ 11.07	\$ 11.75	\$ 12.46	\$ 13.20	\$ 14.01
6	\$ 11.75	\$ 12.46	\$ 13.20	\$ 14.01	\$ 14.84
7	\$ 12.48	\$ 13.24	\$ 14.04	\$ 14.87	\$ 15.77
8	\$ 13.81	\$ 14.65	\$ 15.52	\$ 16.46	\$ 17.45
9	\$ 14.78	\$ 15.66	\$ 16.61	\$ 17.60	\$ 18.66
10	\$ 15.83	\$ 16.76	\$ 17.77	\$ 18.84	\$ 19.96
11	\$ 16.91	\$ 17.94	\$ 19.02	\$ 20.16	\$ 21.36
12	\$ 18.11	\$ 19.21	\$ 20.36	\$ 21.57	\$ 22.87
13	\$ 19.14	\$ 20.31	\$ 21.52	\$ 22.79	\$ 24.16

Effective January 29, 2006, bargaining unit employees shall be paid in accordance with the following wage grade schedule:

	Ranges Effective January 29, 2000 (5.0%)					
	Start	Step 1	Step 2	Step 3	Step 4	
1	\$ 9.05	\$ 9.60	\$ 10.17	\$ 10.79	\$ 11.40	
2	\$ 9.60	\$ 10.17	\$ 10.79	\$ 11.40	\$ 12.10	
3	\$ 10.17	\$ 10.79	\$ 11.40	\$ 12.10	\$ 12.83	
4	\$ 10.79	\$ 11.40	\$ 12.10	\$ 12.83	\$ 13.60	
5	\$ 11.40	\$ 12.10	\$ 12.83	\$ 13.60	\$ 14.43	
6	\$ 12.10	\$ 12.83	\$ 13.60	\$ 14.43	\$ 15.29	
7	\$ 12.85	\$ 13.64	\$ 14.46	\$ 15.32	\$ 16.24	
8	\$ 14.22	\$ 15.09	\$ 15.99	\$ 16.95	\$ 17.97	
9	\$ 15.22	\$ 16.13	\$ 17.11	\$ 18.13	\$ 19.22	
10	\$ 16.30	\$ 17.26	\$ 18.30	\$ 19.41	\$ 20.56	
11	\$17.42	\$ 18.48	\$ 19.59	\$ 20.76	\$ 22.00	
12	\$ 18.65	\$ 19.79	\$ 20.97	\$ 22.22	\$ 23.56	
13	\$ 19.71	\$ 20.92	\$ 22.17	\$ 23.47	\$ 24.88	

Ranges Effective January 29, 2006 (3.0%)

Employees shall progress to the next step in applicable wage grade progression on their job anniversary date, and, thereafter, shall follow the wage grade progression.

A general wage increase will be provided to all employees as follows: a three percent (3%) wage increase effective February 4, 2004, a three percent (3%) wage increase effective January 30, 2005, and a three percent (3%) wage increase effective January 29, 2006.

(125) In the administration of the wage grade schedules, an employee whose anniversary date falls within the first (1st) seven (7) calendar days of the affected pay period shall receive the step increase retroactive to his first (1st) work day within the pay period, and an employee whose anniversary date falls within the second (2nd) seven (7) calendar days of the affected pay period shall receive the step increase on the first (1st) day of the next pay period.

(125-A) Employee contributions to the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) will not be included in the gross taxable income subject to the federal withholding taxes.

ARTICLE XXXIII - SUCCESSOR

(126) The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon the Hospital and its successors, assigns, or future purchasers, and all of the terms and obligations herein contained shall not be affected or changed in any respect by the consolidation, merger, sale, transfer, assignment and/or relocation of operations within Cuyahoga County of the Hospital (including changes in legal status, ownership, and/or management). If there is a termination, transfer, and/or relocation of operations during the term of this Agreement, all employees who are displaced will exercise their seniority rights under the following procedure:

(a) If work is actually transferred or relocated to another unit and new jobs are created in the same classification (s) as a result of the transfer or relocation, the displaced employees shall have the right to claim these available jobs in their same classification (s) on the basis of their Hospital seniority.

(b) If no work is transferred or relocated, or if no new jobs are created as a result of a transfer or relocation of work, the displaced employees shall have the right to exercise their Hospital seniority to "bump" into equal or lower rated jobs in any of the other units based upon their Hospital seniority and their ability to do the required work, and in such situations the bumping employee must bump the employee in the particular classification who has the lowest classification seniority.

(c) Thereafter, all employees bumped out of their regular jobs will exercise their lay off seniority rights under Article XV of this Agreement.

At the conclusion of this procedure, any displaced employees who are not able to claim jobs at other units and any other employees who are laid off at other units as a result of bumping shall continue to have preferential hiring rights under the seniority provisions of this Agreement. Any employees who are displaced and who exercise their rights to transfer to another unit shall continue their employment with full seniority and with no loss of benefits (except that their wage range shall be determined by the job position which they hold at their "new location").

ARTICLE XXXIV - MISCELLANEOUS

(127) All non-probationary employees employed at the MetroHealth Medical Center facility shall be provided with free parking for the final two pay periods of each calendar year. The Hospital agrees that to the extent an increase occurs, it shall not exceed one dollar (\$1.00) per pay period for the term of the Agreement.

ARTICLE XXXV - LEGALITY

(128) It is the intent of the Hospital and the Union that this Agreement comply, in every respect, with applicable legal statutes, constitutional requirements, governmental regulations which have the effect of law, and judicial opinions. If it is determined by proper authority that any provision of this Agreement is in conflict with law, that provision shall be null and void and shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions and/or Paragraphs of this Agreement. In the event of such an unlawful determination, the Hospital and the Union shall meet within fourteen (14) days for the purpose of negotiating a lawful alternative provision.

ARTICLE XXXVI - DURATION

(129) This Agreement represents a complete and final understanding on all bargain able issues between the Hospital and the Union and totally supersedes and nullifies all previous Statements, Supplementary Statements, and Letters of Agreement between the Hospital and the Union except as provided in this Paragraph. This Agreement shall be effective as of February 4, 2004, and remain in full force and effect until February 3, 2007, and thereafter from year to year unless at least ninety (90) days prior to said expiration date, or any anniversary thereof, either party gives timely written notice to the other of an intent to negotiate on any or all of its provisions. Upon timely written notice of an intention to reopen negotiations, an initial conference will be arranged within fourteen (14) days after receipt of such notice.

METROHEALTH CENTER FOR SKILLED NURSING CARE SUPPLEMENT

The MetroHealth Medical Center and Ohio Council 8 and Locals 3353 and 3360 of the American Federation of State, County, & Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, do hereby agree that the following provisions shall be applicable exclusively to the MetroHealth Center for Skilled Nursing Care and shall supersede and nullify the related provisions (if any) in the 1995-1998 Agreement between The MetroHealth System and the Union.

1. Employees awarded a job constituting a promotion shall be promoted at the beginning of the pay period to the maximum extent practicable.

MISCELLANEOUS

- 2. The following categories of employees are excluded from the bargaining unit:
 - A. Professional employees as follows:
 - Physicians Pharmacists Dentists Podiatrists Bacteriologists (with Doctoral degree, Ph.D.) Psychologists Dietitians Registered Nurses and Student Nurses Teachers -Registered Inhalation Therapists - Registered Licensed or Registered Physical and Occupational Therapists

B. Heads of Departments as follows:

Nursing	Security
Social Services	Physical Therapy
Nutritional Services	Occupational Therapy
Environmental Services	Administration
Laboratory and X-ray	Statistical
Plant Engineering	X-ray Survey

C. Administrative employees as follows:

Vice President Secretary to Vice President Administrative Assistant Medical Director of Hospital Secretary to Medical Director of Hospital Associate Director and Assistant Director of Nursing Secretary to Associate Director of Nursing Director and Assistant Director of Volunteers Director of Medical Services Secretary to Director of Medical Services Director of Programming and Development Controller Senior Accountant Payroll Clerk Procurement Officer Credit Manager Assistant Credit Manager Personnel Director Secretary to Personnel Director Utilization Review Coordinator and Discharge Planner Assistant Utilization Review Coordinator and Discharge Planner Utilization Review Supervisor Housekeeping Supervisor Assistant Maintenance Supervisor Power Plant Supervisor **Dietary Supervisor** Supervisor of Medical Social Services Supervisor of Medical Records Recreational Activity Supervisor Security Officers and Sergeants

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands this _____ of December 2004.

OHIO COUNCIL 8 AND LOCALS 3360 AND 3353, AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY, AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES, AFL-CIO

On the part of Ohio Council 8, AFSCME

Michael Bauer, Regional Director

Hernando Harge, Staff Representative

On the part of Local 3360, AFSCME

Barbara Thomas, Union President Julie Albers, Union Vice President Barbara Clausing Betty Holcomb Tamara Williams-Scott Joseph Mion Roosevelt Jamison Pat Holmes-Kitko

On the part of Local 3353, AFSCME

Ingeborg Thomas, Union President Verdia Young, Union Vice President

On the part of METROHEALTH MEDICAL CENTER

Paul Monahan, Vice President Human Resources Bruce Reimer, Manager Employee/Labor Relations

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING NO. 1

The 2004-2007 Agreement between the MetroHealth Medical Center and Ohio Council 8 and Locals 3360 and 3353 of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, is supplemented by the following special agreement:

Upon the 5th, 13th, and 23rd anniversary dates of continuous service, forty (40) additional hours of vacation will be added to an employee's cumulative vacation total.

The effective date of this settlement will be made retroactive to April 6, 1981.

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING NO. 2

The 2004-2007 Agreement between the MetroHealth Medical Center and Ohio Council 8 and Locals 3360 and 3353 of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, is supplemented by the following special agreement:

When an employee who is on vacation is hospitalized (on an inpatient basis) the employee will, upon satisfactory proof of hospitalization, have the right to convert his or her vacation status to sick status (from the date of hospitalization) if the employee notifies the Hospital of the hospitalization at the first practical opportunity.

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING NO. 4

The 2004-2007 Agreement between the MetroHealth Medical Center and Ohio Council 8 and Locals 3360 and 3353 of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, is supplemented by the following special agreement:

Under Paragraph 78 of the Agreement, it is agreed that if the Hospital temporarily transfers an employee from one shift to another within the same work week, the Hospital shall transfer the least senior employee from the affected shift (the shift from which the employee is transferred) based upon departmental classification seniority and who is qualified to perform the work, except in nursing where such transfers shall be done on a unit basis as defined in Paragraph 66 of the Agreement.

LETTER OF UNDSTANDING NO. 5

The 2004-2007 Agreement between the MetroHealth Medical Center and Ohio Council 8 and Local 3360 and 3353 of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, is supplemented by the following special agreement:

In the event of severely inclement weather, employees may be granted a thirty (30) minute grace period during which time to report to work without penalty; however, the determination of what constitutes "severely inclement weather" for the purpose of this Agreement remains within the sole discretion of the Hospital.

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING NO. 6

The 2004-2007 Agreement between the MetroHealth Medical Center and Ohio Council 8 and Locals 3360 and 3353 of the American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, is supplemented by the following special agreement:

The Hospital recognizes that employee parking at MetroHealth Medical center may, at times, be limited. Therefore, the Hospital agrees that an employee at MetroHealth Medical Center has the right to grieve discipline imposed for tardiness if such tardiness is attributable solely and exclusively to his inability to find a parking space; however, the burden shall be on the employee to prove that the sole and exclusive reason for his tardiness was his inability to find a parking space.

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING NO. 7

The 2004-2007 Agreement between the MetroHealth Medical Center and Ohio Council 8 and Locals 3360 and 3353 of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, is supplemented by the following special agreement amended 2001-2004:

The parties hereto mutually agree that notwithstanding anything contained in the collective agreement to the contrary, "alternative scheduling" will be permissible.

Alternative scheduling is defined as a work schedule whereby an employee will work one or more days in a week in increments of more than eight (8) hours. Under such arrangement, overtime will not accrue until the affected employee works more than forty (40) hours per week. Time and one-half (1-1/2) pay shall not accrue unless the affected employee is required to begin work with less than an eleven (11) hour break between regularly scheduled shifts. Alternative schedules shall not include schedules of more than five (5) days in a single workweek.

Paid sick leave, vacation leave, and jury/witness duty leave for employees on alternative scheduling will be paid and charged at the rate of the number of hours that the employee is scheduled to work for on the affected dates. Pay for recognized holidays, as well as the birthday holiday, will be made on the basis of eight (8) hours per day for full-time employees (and pro-rated for part-time employees per Paragraph 118). For disciplinary purposes, each "day" of suspension shall consist of eight (8) hours of unpaid time off, regardless of the number of daily hours that the employee regularly works.

Under Paragraph 64, employees who work under alternative schedules shall be entitled to two (2) twenty (20) minute paid rest periods for any scheduled shift of ten (10) or more hours.

It is understood and acknowledged by both parties that the decision to utilize alternative scheduling is at the sole discretion of the Hospital and will be based upon operational needs. Once the Employer determines that an alternative schedule is desirable for a particular department or unit, the schedule will be posted in advance and employees will have the opportunity to select their shift preference by job classification seniority within the department or unit. After the schedule undergoes a trial period of twelve (12) weeks, the affected employees will be allowed to vote on whether or not to continue the schedule. If a majority of employees vote to continue, the schedule change will be adopted... It is also understood that nothing herein shall be construed to compel the Hospital to adopt, or once adopted, to continue alternative scheduling in any department or within any department or classification.

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING NO. 8

The 2004-2007 Agreement between the MetroHealth Medical System and Ohio Council 8 and Locals 3360 and 3353 of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, is supplemented by the following special agreement:

In the event of a re-organization in the governance of the Hospital such that there is a conversion from public employer status, the Hospital shall continue to recognize the Union as the representative of the existing bargaining unit as defined in Article I. Moreover, the parties will continue to be bound by the terms and conditions of this collective bargaining agreement between the parties, dated February 4, 2001, through February 3, 2004, except as set forth below regarding retirement programs. Specifically, all current employees as of the date of the Hospital's reorganization (or other mutually satisfactory and agreed to date) may elect to continue to participate in the Public Employees as of the date of the Hospital's reorganization (or other mutually satisfactory and agreed to date) may elect to date) may elect to date) may elect to date of the Hospital's reorganization (or other mutually satisfactory and agreed to date) may elect to date) may elect to date) may elect to date of the Hospital's reorganization in PERS. All employees hired after the date of reorganization (or other mutually satisfactory or agreed to date) may not elect to participate in PERS and shall be covered under the federal social security system.

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING NO. 9

The 2004-2007 Agreement between the MetroHealth Medical System and Ohio Council 8 and Local 3360 and Local 3353 of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, is supplemented by the following special agreement:

Each local shall select one (1) representative to serve on the MetroHealth System s main Safety Committee.

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING NO. 10

The 2004-2007 Agreement between the MetroHealth Medical System and Ohio Council 8 and Local 3360 and Local 3353 of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, is supplemented by the following special agreement:

Employees at the Thomas F. McCafferty Health Center who currently do not speak Spanish will not be required to speak Spanish for the duration of their employment at the Center. New employees hired to at the McCafferty Center will be required to speak Spanish and English.

Otherwise qualified employees who do not speak Spanish and who are laid off or bumped under Article XV may fill vacancies at the McCafferty Center so long as qualified Spanish speaking employees are not available. The Hospital may continue to recruit qualified Spanish speaking employees for those positions. If hired, the Spanish speaking employee shall displace the non-Spanish speaking employee, who may then exercise his/her rights under Article XV.

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING NO. 11

The 2004-2007 Agreement between the MetroHealth Medical System and Ohio Council 8 and Local 3360 and Local 3353 of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, is supplemented by the following special agreement:

The Hospital and the Union will jointly author a letter to all bargaining unit employees emphasizing the importance of good attendance, urging employees to work hard to improve their attendance, and alerting all employees that the

attendance policy will be strictly enforced. Current employees who are not at the correct disciplinary step under the attendance policy will be accelerated such that each subsequent absence triggers the next disciplinary step until the employee is at the appropriate step as set forth in the policy.

Further, the Hospital and Union agree to abide by the scheduling and rotation/mandation requirements set forth in the current contract. The Hospital will alert its managers and supervisors of this continuing obligation.

The Hospital and Union agree to conduct Town Hall type meetings with all members of the bargaining unit to announce these changes and address the issue of attendance/absenteeism.

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING NO. 12

The 2004-2007 Agreement between the MetroHealth Medical System and Ohio Council 8 and Local 3360 and Local 3353 of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, is supplemented by the following special agreement:

Employees who are required to take a qualifying examination for any position, who fail that examination, may retest for that position not less than thirty (30) days after the initial test. If the employee fails the qualifying examination a second time, the employee may retest not less than thirty (30) days following the first retest. Thereafter, if the employee again fails the qualifying examination, the employee will have to wait not less than six (6) months from the second retest to be eligible to take the qualifying examination another time. Training materials, if any, shall be made available prior to the test.

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING NO. 13

The 2004-2007 Agreement between the MetroHealth Medical System and Ohio Council 8 and Local 3360 and Local 3353 of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, is supplemented by the following special agreement:

The Hospital shall identify closed positions within a department. Upon identifying such closed positions, the Hospital will initially restrict job transfers (i.e., changes of hours, shift or relocation) to individuals in the affected job classification and department before opening the position to individuals outside the department.

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING NO. 14

The 2004-2007 Agreement between the MetroHealth Medical System and Ohio Council 8 and Local 3360 and Local 3353 of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, is supplemented by the following special agreement:

Applicants for positions will be permitted to shadow or accompany an employee in the new position for a day in order to fully understand and appreciate the position for which they are applying. Such shadow experience shall be conducted on the employee s own time and shall be unpaid.

WAGE GRADES AND JOB CLASSIFICATIONS

Ranges Effective February 1, 2004 (3.0%)

	Start	Step 1	Step 2	Step 3	Step 4	
1	\$ 8.53	\$ 9.05	\$ 9.58	\$ 10.17	\$ 10.75	
2	\$ 9.05	\$ 9.58	\$ 10.17	\$ 10.75	\$ 11.41	
3	\$ 9.58	\$ 10.17	\$ 10.75	\$11.41	\$ 12.10	
4	\$ 10.17	\$ 10.75	\$ 11.41	\$ 12.10	\$ 12.82	
5	\$ 10.75	\$ 11.41	\$ 12.10	\$ 12.82	\$ 13.60	
6	\$ 11.41	\$ 12.10	\$ 12.82	\$ 13.60	\$ 14.41	
7	\$ 12.12	\$ 12.85	\$ 13.63	\$ 14.44	\$ 15.31	
8	\$ 13.41	\$ 14.22	\$ 15.07	\$ 15.98	\$ 16.94	
9	\$ 14.35	\$ 15.20	\$ 16.13	\$17.09	\$ 18.12	
10	\$ 15.37	\$ 16.27	\$ 17.25	\$ 18.29	\$ 19.38	
11	\$ 16.42	\$ 17.42	\$ 18.47	\$ 19.57	\$ 20.74	
12	\$ 17.58	\$ 18.65	\$ 19.77	\$ 20.94	\$ 22.20	
13	\$ 18.58	\$ 19.72	\$ 20.89	\$ 22.13	\$ 23.46	

Ranges Effective January 30, 2005 (3.0%)

	Start	Step 1	Step 2	Step 3	Step 4
1	\$ 8.79	\$ 9.32	\$ 9.87	\$ 10.48	\$ 11.07
2	\$ 9.32	\$ 9.87	\$ 10.48	\$ 11.07	\$ 11.75
3	\$ 9.87	\$ 10.48	\$ 11.07	\$ 11.75	\$ 12.46
4	\$ 10.48	\$ 11.07	\$ 11.75	\$ 12.46	\$ 13.20
5	\$ 11.07	\$ 11.75	\$ 12.46	\$ 13.20	\$ 14.01
6	\$ 11.75	\$ 12.46	\$ 13.20	\$ 14.01	\$ 14.84
7	\$ 12.48	\$ 13.24	\$ 14.04	\$ 14.87	\$ 15.77
8	\$ 13.81	\$ 14.65	\$ 15.52	\$ 16.46	\$ 17.45
9	\$ 14.78	\$ 15.66	\$ 16.61	\$ 17.60	\$ 18.66
10	\$ 15.83	\$ 16.76	\$ 17.77	\$ 18.84	\$ 19.96
11	\$ 16.91	\$ 17.94	\$ 19.02	\$ 20.16	\$ 21.36
12	\$ 18.11	\$ 19.21	\$ 20.36	\$ 21.57	\$ 22.87
13	\$ 19.14	\$ 20.31	\$ 21.52	\$ 22.79	\$ 24.16

Ranges Effective January 29, 2006 (3.0%)

	Start	Step 1	Step 2	Step 3	Step 4
1	\$ 9.05	\$ 9.60	\$ 10.17	\$ 10.79	\$ 11.40
2	\$ 9.60	\$ 10.17	\$ 10.79	\$ 11.40	\$ 12.10
3	\$ 10.17	\$ 10.79	\$ 11.40	\$ 12.10	\$ 12.83
4	\$ 10.79	\$ 11.40	\$ 12.10	\$ 12.83	\$ 13.60
5	\$ 11.40	\$ 12.10	\$ 12.83	\$ 13.60	\$ 14.43
6	\$ 12.10	\$ 12.83	\$ 13.60	\$ 14.43	\$ 15.29
7	\$ 12.85	\$ 13.64	\$ 14.46	\$ 15.32	\$ 16.24
8	\$ 14.22	\$ 15.09	\$ 15.99	\$ 16.95	\$ 17.97
9	\$ 15.22	\$ 16.13	\$ 17.11	\$ 18.13	\$ 19.22
10	\$ 16.30	\$ 17.26	\$ 18.30	\$ 19.41	\$ 20.56
11	\$17.42	\$ 18.48	\$ 19.59	\$ 20.76	\$ 22.00
12	\$ 18.65	\$ 19.79	\$ 20.97	\$ 22.22	\$ 23.56
13	\$ 19.71	\$ 20.92	\$ 22.17	\$ 23.47	\$ 24.88